
From: Savannah Quiros 
Sent: Friday, January 10, 2025 9:46 AM 
To: De Leon, Glenda (EthosEnergy) 
Cc: Barnard, Kevin (EthosEnergy); Bryan, Jordan (EthosEenergy) 
Subject: RE: Working Draft Permit - FOP O2066/Project 36294, Wolf Hollow I Power, 

LLC/Wolf Hollow I 
 
Thank you, Glenda! 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Savannah G. Quiros 
(they/them/theirs) 
Permit Reviewer 
TCEQ – APD – OP Section (Title V) 
(512) 239-1228 
 

 

 How are we doing?  Fill out our online customer satisfaction 
survey at www.tceq.texas.gov/customersurvey 

 
 

From: De Leon, Glenda (EthosEnergy) <Glenda.DeLeon@ethosenergy.com>  
Sent: Friday, January 10, 2025 8:55 AM 
To: Savannah Quiros <Savannah.Quiros@tceq.texas.gov> 
Cc: Barnard, Kevin (EthosEnergy) <kevin.barnard@ethosenergy.com>; Bryan, Jordan (EthosEenergy) 
<Jordan.Bryan@ethosenergy.com> 
Subject: RE: Working Draft Permit - FOP O2066/Project 36294, Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC/Wolf Hollow I 
 
Good morning Savannah, 
 
The signed OP-CRO1 has been submitted via STEERS. Please see attached confirmation.  
 
Have a great weekend! 
 
Glenda De Leon 
Environmental Manager 
M  +1 (817) 939-4066 
E  glenda.deleon@ethosenergy.com 
 

 
 
 
 

From: De Leon, Glenda (EthosEnergy)  
Sent: Thursday, January 9, 2025 3:35 PM 

http://links.govdelivery.com/track?type=click&enid=ZWFzPTEmbWFpbGluZ2lkPTIwMTgxMTAyLjk3MDg5MTgxJm1lc3NhZ2VpZD1NREItUFJELUJVTC0yMDE4MTEwMi45NzA4OTE4MSZkYXRhYmFzZWlkPTEwMDEmc2VyaWFsPTE3MzIwMjU1JmVtYWlsaWQ9ZGlhbm5lLmFuZGVyc29uQHRjZXEudGV4YXMuZ292JnVzZXJpZD1kaWFubmUuYW5kZXJzb25AdGNlcS50ZXhhcy5nb3YmZmw9JmV4dHJhPU11bHRpdmFyaWF0ZUlkPSYmJg==&&&104&&&http://www.tceq.texas.gov/goto/customersurvey
mailto:glenda.deleon@ethosenergy.com


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
 
Hi Savannah, 
 
Attached is the signed OP-CRO1 for your records. The form will be submitted via STEERS today or 
tomorrow by the RO. 
 
Best Regards, 
 
Glenda De Leon 
Environmental Manager 
M  +1 (817) 939-4066 
E  glenda.deleon@ethosenergy.com 
 

 
 
 
 

From: De Leon, Glenda (EthosEnergy)  
Sent: Thursday, January 9, 2025 2:17 PM 
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
 
Thanks so much Savannah, I will prepare the OP-CRO1 to be submitted via STEERS. I will let you 
know once the RO submits the form.  
 
Best Regards, 
 
Glenda De Leon 
Environmental Manager 
M  +1 (817) 939-4066 
E  glenda.deleon@ethosenergy.com 
 

 
 
 
 

From: Savannah Quiros <Savannah.Quiros@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, January 9, 2025 1:24 PM 

mailto:Savannah.Quiros@tceq.texas.gov
mailto:kevin.barnard@ethosenergy.com
mailto:Jordan.Bryan@ethosenergy.com
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






From: steers@tceq.texas.gov 
Sent: Friday, January 10, 2025 8:20 AM 
To: De Leon, Glenda (EthosEnergy); Lamew, Rex (EthosEnergy); Bryan, Jordan 

(EthosEenergy) 
Subject: STEERS Title V Application Submittal (Update) 

 
This confirms the submittal of your Title V Existing Application to the TCEQ. 
 
 Your application was successfully submitted and received by the TCEQ at 01/10/2025 
08:19 AM. 
 
 The submitted application will now be reviewed by the program area. You will be 
notified by the program area reviewing your application if more information is needed 
and of final action (approval or denial) of the application. 
 
 The Reference number for this submittal is 744212. 
 
 The Area ID for this submittal is 2066. 
 The Project ID for this submittal is 36294. 
 The STEERS confirmation number for this submittal is 617761. 
 The hash code for this submittal is 
4F9DC22FB643AAC3051D5381AAEBCED859AABF4C099B6810102C05743E5F6C7D
. 
 
You may access the copy of record (submitted application) from the submit log which is 
available by selecting Submissions from the Home page of STEERS 
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://www3.tceq.texas.gov/steers/__;!!GnZUUc7pEbDt!-
ly5OFy6H7KE-
sTKddNzSTHnuHDp0QAhEWrdjB1faz5RaTmkgLFVLYGRf_eOYDzC7oo_RoKVk81dW
_P0LrxiLzN9VBmD$. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Air Permits division at 512-239-1250 or by 
e-mail at airperm@tceq.texas.gov. 
 
Best,  
 

Savannah Quiros (x1228) 
(they/them/theirs) 
Permit Reviewer – Title V 
 

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www3.tceq.texas.gov/steers/__;!!GnZUUc7pEbDt!-ly5OFy6H7KE-sTKddNzSTHnuHDp0QAhEWrdjB1faz5RaTmkgLFVLYGRf_eOYDzC7oo_RoKVk81dW_P0LrxiLzN9VBmD$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www3.tceq.texas.gov/steers/__;!!GnZUUc7pEbDt!-ly5OFy6H7KE-sTKddNzSTHnuHDp0QAhEWrdjB1faz5RaTmkgLFVLYGRf_eOYDzC7oo_RoKVk81dW_P0LrxiLzN9VBmD$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www3.tceq.texas.gov/steers/__;!!GnZUUc7pEbDt!-ly5OFy6H7KE-sTKddNzSTHnuHDp0QAhEWrdjB1faz5RaTmkgLFVLYGRf_eOYDzC7oo_RoKVk81dW_P0LrxiLzN9VBmD$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www3.tceq.texas.gov/steers/__;!!GnZUUc7pEbDt!-ly5OFy6H7KE-sTKddNzSTHnuHDp0QAhEWrdjB1faz5RaTmkgLFVLYGRf_eOYDzC7oo_RoKVk81dW_P0LrxiLzN9VBmD$


To: De Leon, Glenda (EthosEnergy) <Glenda.DeLeon@ethosenergy.com> 
Cc: Barnard, Kevin (EthosEnergy) <kevin.barnard@ethosenergy.com>; Bryan, Jordan (EthosEenergy) 
<Jordan.Bryan@ethosenergy.com> 
Subject: RE: Working Draft Permit - FOP O2066/Project 36294, Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC/Wolf Hollow I 
 
Hi Glenda, Yes, you are correct, PBRs only need to be listed once. I’ve rem oved the duplicates. I’ve corrected the PBR regist ration numbers (see attached). Sincerely, Savannah G. Quiros (they/them/theirs) Permit Reviewer OA/Air Permits Division/OP  
 

Hi Glenda,  
 

1. Yes, you are correct, PBRs only need to be listed once. I’ve removed the duplicates.  
2. I’ve corrected the PBR registration numbers (see attached). 

 
Sincerely, 
 

Savannah G. Quiros 

(they/them/theirs)  
Permit Reviewer 
OA/Air Permits Division/OP Section 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
MC-163, P.O. Box 13087 
Austin, TX  78711-3087 
savannah.quiros@tceq.texas.gov 
 
Phone:     (512) 239-1228 
Fax:         (512) 239-1400 
 

 

 How are we doing?  Fill out our online customer satisfaction 
survey at www.tceq.texas.gov/customersurvey 

 

From: De Leon, Glenda (EthosEnergy) <Glenda.DeLeon@ethosenergy.com>  
Sent: Thursday, January 9, 2025 12:17 PM 
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
Importance: High 
 
Hi Savannah,  
 
I have one question and one correction (the correction was ok in the comments provided). Also, is 
it possible for you to update this week so I can send the OP-CRO1 and wrap up before my last day 
at Ethos? 
 

1. Please consult with your team lead, but I have never seen the same PBR listed multiple 
times. I believe you only need it listed once, please confirm. 
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2. The PBR Registration numbers were swapped and did not follow my comments (my 
comments were correct; it was not a mistake of order). Turbine 1 PBR Registration is 
161186 NOT 161185. Turbine 2 PBR Registration No. is 161185 NOT 161186. Can you 
please correct? 

 
 



 
Best Regards, 
 
Glenda De Leon 
Environmental Manager 
M  +1 (817) 939-4066 
E  glenda.deleon@ethosenergy.com 
 

 
 
 
 

From: Savannah Quiros <Savannah.Quiros@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Wednesday, January 8, 2025 2:48 PM 
To: De Leon, Glenda (EthosEnergy) <Glenda.DeLeon@ethosenergy.com> 
Cc: Bryan, Jordan (EthosEenergy) <Jordan.Bryan@ethosenergy.com>; Lamew, Rex (EthosEnergy) 
<Rex.Lamew@ethosenergy.com>; Barnard, Kevin (EthosEnergy) <kevin.barnard@ethosenergy.com> 
Subject: RE: Working Draft Permit - FOP O2066/Project 36294, Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC/Wolf Hollow I 
 
Good mor ning Glenda, B est of luck with your future endeavors ! I’ve updated the WDP with the updates from the received OP -PBRSUP; pleas e see attached pages (30-34). If everything l ooks correct, you can reply to this email with y our explicit approval 
 

Good morning Glenda,  
 
Best of luck with your future endeavors! I’ve updated the WDP with the updates from the received 
OP-PBRSUP; please see attached pages (30-34). If everything looks correct, you can reply to this 
email with your explicit approval of the WDP. I’ve reviewed your comment on  GRP-BLR, and GRP-
BLR cannot be added with the turbines. The heat recovery steam generators are sufficiently 
included in the citations.  
 
Please send me an OP-CRO1 through STEERS with the date range of 08/22/2024 to the day of 
submittal to certify the updates you’ve sent me by 01/17/2025. 
 
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
mailto:Glenda.DeLeon@ethosenergy.com
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
Sent: Wednesday, October 23, 2024 2:47 PM 
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
 
Good afternoon Savannah, 
 
Thank you so much for taking the time to address my questions this morning. Attached you will find 
the Wolf Hollow I WDP-2 with comments, NSR Summary Table with tracked changes, and the 
updated PBR Supplemental Table. 
 
WDP Comments: 

• Include the boilers (GRP-BLR) with the turbines so it is clear that Subpart KKKK applicability 
is for both Process IDs.  

 
2. Update the New source Review Authorizations for CTG1 and CTG2 (I am including the updates 
discussed in the attached OP-PBRSUP). 

mailto:savannah.quiros@tceq.texas.gov
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TCEQ-20875 (APD-ID 102v1, revised 05/22) OP-PBRSUP 
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and  
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20) Page_____ of ______ 

Permit By Rule Supplemental Table (Page 1) 
Table A: Registered Permits by Rule (30 TAC Chapter 106) for the Application Area 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 

Date Permit Number Regulated Entity Number 

10/23/2024 O2066 RN100219195 

 
Unit ID No. Registration No. PBR No. Registration Date 

Turbine Unit 2 (CTG2/E-ST2) 161186 106.261 & 106.262 6/11/2020 

Turbine Unit 1 (CTG1/E-ST1) 161185 106.261 & 106.262 6/11/2020 

Three semi-bulk containers 54096 (Referenced in NSR 41166) 106.261 2/12/2003 

Turbine Unit 2 (CTG2/E-ST2) 176399 106.261 & 106.262 6/11/2024 

    

    

    

    

    

    

 
  



 

TCEQ-20875 (APD-ID 102v1, revised 05/22) OP-PBRSUP 
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and  
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20) Page _____ of _____ 
 

Permit By Rule Supplemental Table (Page 2) 
Table B: Claimed (not registered) Permits by Rule (30 TAC Chapter 106) for the Application Area 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 
Date Permit Number Regulated Entity Number 

10/23/2024 O2066 RN100219195 

 
Unit ID No. PBR No. Version No./Date 

ILEMSS 106.227 9/4/2000 

ILEMSS 106.263 11/01/2001 

ILEMSS 106.265 9/4/2000 

ILEMSS 106.452 9/4/2000 

ILEMSS 106.454 11/1/2001 

TANK3 to TANK22 106.472 9/4/2000 

UNLOAD-DSL 106.473 9/4/2000 

E-GEN & E-PUMP 106.511 9/4/2000 

ILEMSS 106.532 9/4/2000 

ILEMSS 106.433 9/4/2000 

   

 
  



 

TCEQ-20875 (APD-ID 102v1, revised 05/22) OP-PBRSUP 
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and  
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20) Page _____ of _____ 
 

Permit By Rule Supplemental Table (Page 3) 
Table C: Claimed (not registered) Permits by Rule (30 TAC Chapter 106) for Insignificant Sources for the Application Area 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 
Date Permit Number Regulated Entity Number 

10/23/2024 O2066 RN100219195 

 
PBR No. Version No./Date 

106.122 9/4/2000 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 
  



 

TCEQ-20875 (APD-ID 102v1, revised 05/22) OP-PBRSUP 
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and  
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20) Page _____ of _____ 
 

Permit By Rule Supplemental Table (Page 4) 
Table D: Monitoring Requirements for registered and claimed PBRs for the Application Area 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 

Date Permit Number Regulated Entity Number 

10/23/2024 O2066 RN100219195 

 
Unit ID No. PBR No. Version No./Date Or 

Registration No. 
Monitoring Requirement 

Turbine Unit 2 (CTG2/E-
ST2) 

161186 6/11/2020 Monitor and maintain records demonstrating emissions are below permit limits. 

Turbine Unit 1 (CTG1/E-
ST1) 

161185 6/11/2020 Monitor and maintain records demonstrating emissions are below permit limits. 

Three semi-bulk containers 54096 (Referenced in NSR 
41166) 

2/12/2003 Monitor and maintain records demonstrating emissions are below permit limits. 

ILEMSS 106.122 9/4/2000 None. 

ILEMSS 106.227 9/4/2000 Monitor welding equipment do not contain lead. 

ILEMSS 106.263 11/01/2001 Maintain records of events and routine maintenance emissions. 

ILEMSS 106.265 9/4/2000 None. 

ILEMSS 106.452 9/4/2000 Maintain records of operating hours and abrasive material usage. 

ILEMSS 106.454 11/1/2001 Monitor and maintain records of solvent use. 

 
  



 

TCEQ-20875 (APD-ID 102v1, revised 05/22) OP-PBRSUP 
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and  
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20) Page _____ of _____ 
 

Permit By Rule Supplemental Table (Page 5) 
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

TANK3 to TANK22 106.472 9/4/2000 Monitor and maintain records of material stored and handled. 

UNLOAD-DSL 106.473 9/4/2000 Maintain volume records and monitor emissions. 

E-GEN & E-PUMP 106.511 9/4/2000 Monitor operating hours. 

ILEMSS 106.532 9/4/2000 None. 

ILEMSS 106.433 9/4/2000 Monitor emissions. 

Turbine Unit 2 (CTG2/E-
ST2) 

176399 6/11/2024 Monitor and maintain records demonstrating emissions are below permit limits. 

    

    

 
 



 

Major NSR Summary Table 

Permit Numbers: 41166 and PSDTX939 Issuance Date: July 9, 2012 10/31/2019 

Emission 
Point No. (1) 

Source 
Name (2) 

Air Contaminant 
Name (3) 

Emission Rates 
Monitoring and 

Testing Requirements 
Recordkeeping 
Requirements 

Reporting 
Requirements 

lb/hr TPY (4) 
Special 

Condition/Application 
Information 

Special 
Condition/Application 

Information 

Special 
Condition/Application 

Information 

E-ST 1 

MH1501G (~254 
MW) + ~243.3 
MMBtu/hr DB – 
Normal 
Operations, 
Hourly Emission 
Rates 

NOx 91.9 -- 

4, 7, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 
15, 16,25, 27 

4, 7, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 
15, 16, 23, 24, 25, 27 

9, 10, 11, 12, 25, 26, 27 

CO 143.4 -- 

VOC 12.3 -- 

PM10/PM2.5 30.1 -- 

SO2 41.8 -- 

H2SO4 5.1 -- 

NH3 37.8 -- 

E-ST 2 

MH1501G (~254 
MW) + ~243.3 
MMBtu/hr DB – 
Normal 
Operations, 
Hourly Emission 
Rates 

NOx 91.9 -- 

4, 7, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 
15, 16, 25, 27 

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
Reduced Load 
and MSS 
Operations, 
Hourly Emission 
Rates 

NOx 386.9 -- 

4, 7, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 
15, 16, 19, 21, 25, 27 

4, 7, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 
15, 16, 19, 21, 22, 23, 
24, 25, 27 

9, 10, 11, 12, 25, 26, 27 

CO 3029.2 -- 

VOC 333.4 -- 

PM10/PM2.5 21.3 -- 

SO2 18.2 -- 

H2SO4 2.2 -- 

NH3 20.5 -- 

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

E-ST 1 & 
E-ST2 

MH1501G (~254 
MW) + ~243.3 
MMBtu/hr DB – 
Normal, Reduced 
Load and MSS 
Operations, 
Annual Emission 
Rates 

NOx -- 708.7 

4, 7, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 
15, 16, 19, 21, 25, 27 

4, 7, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 
15, 16, 19, 21, 22, 23, 
24, 25, 27 

9, 10, 11, 12, 25, 26, 27 

CO -- 1128.6 

VOC -- 103.0 

PM10/PM2.5 -- 230.9 

SO2 -- 161.6 

H2SO4 -- 19.8 

NH3 -- 291.5 

E-AUXBLR 

Auxiliary Boiler  
142 MMBtu/hr  – 
Normal, Reduced 
Load and MSS 
Operations 

NOx 8.5 3.7 

10, 11, 13, 15, 16, 25 
10, 11, 13, 15, 16, 23, 
24, 25 

10, 11, 25, 26, 27 

CO 10.5 4.6 

VOC 0.77 0.34 

PM10/PM2.5 1.4 0.6 

SO2 2.2 0.49 

E-TANK7 
Diesel Storage 
Tank  300 gallon 

VOC 0.01 <0.01    

C-TOWER Cooling Tower 
PM 5.68 24.87 

8, 17 8, 17, 23, 24 25 
PM10/PM2.5 0.41 1.82 

E-PIPFUG Piping Fugitives 
VOC 0.11 0.5 

16 16  
NH3 0.33 1.41 

MSSFUG 

Non-ILEs 
Maintenance 
Emissions 
(Attachment B) 

VOC 276.33 0.27 19, 21 19, 21, 22, 23, 24 25, 26 



 

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

ILEMSS 
ILEs Maintenance 
(Attachment A) 

NOx <0.01 <0.01 

14, 19, 21 14, 19, 21, 22, 23, 24 18, 25, 26 

CO <0.01 <0.01 

VOC 0.21 0.01 

PM10 0.36 0.01 

PM2.5 0.36 0.01 

 
Footnotes: 
(1) Emission point identification - either specific equipment designation or emission point number from plot plan. 
(2) Specific point source name. For fugitive sources, use area name or fugitive source name. 
(3) Exempt Solvent - Those carbon compounds or mixtures of carbon compounds used as solvents which have been excluded from the 
definition of volatile organic compound. 
VOC - volatile organic compounds as defined in Title 30 Texas Administrative Code § 101.1 
NOx - total oxides of nitrogen 
SO2 - sulfur dioxide 
PM - total particulate matter, suspended in the atmosphere, including PM10 and PM2.5, as represented 
PM10 - total particulate matter equal to or less than 10 microns in diameter, including PM2.5, as represented 
PM2.5 - particulate matter equal to or less than 2.5 microns in diameter 
CO - carbon monoxide 
MSS - maintenance, start-up, and shutdown emissions 
HAP - hazardous air pollutant as listed in § 112(b) of the Federal Clean Air Act or Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 63, Subpart C 
(4) Compliance with annual emission limits (tons per year) is based on a 12-month rolling period. 
(5) Emission rate is an estimate and is enforceable through compliance with the applicable special condition(s) and permit application representations. 
(6) For NOx and CO emissions that are measured using a CEMS, the Reduced Load/MSS lb/hr limits apply during each clock hour that includes one or 
more minutes of reduced load operation or MSS activities.  During all other clock hours, the normal lb/hr limits apply. 
(7) For NH3 emissions that are measured using a CEMS, the Normal Load limits apply during each clock hour that includes one or more minutes of normal 
load operation.  During all other clock hours, the Reduced Load/MSS lb/hr limits apply 
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Applicable Requirements Summary 
 

Unit 
Group 

Process 
ID No. 

Unit 
Group 

Process 
Type 

SOP 
Index 
No. 

Pollutant State Rule or 
Federal 

Regulation 
Name 

Emission 
Limitation, 

Standard or 
Equipment 

Specification 
Citation 

Textual Description 
(See Special Term and 

Condition 1.B.) 

Monitoring 
And Testing 

Requirements 

Recordkeeping 
Requirements 

 
(30 TAC § 122.144) 

Reporting 
Requirements 

 
(30 TAC § 122.145) 

§ 63.6605(b) 
§ 63.6625(e) 
§ 63.6625(f) 
§ 63.6625(h) 
§ 63.6625(i) 
§ 63.6640(f)(1) 
§ 63.6640(f)(2) 
§ 63.6640(f)(2)(i) 
§ 63.6640(f)(4) 
§ 63.6640(f)(4)(i) 

at an area source, you must 
comply with the 
requirements as specified in 
Table 2d.4.a-c. 

§ 63.6640(a)-Table 
6.9.a.ii 

§ 63.6660(b) 
§ 63.6660(c) 

E-PUMP EU 63ZZZZ-1 112(B) 
HAPS 

40 CFR Part 63, 
Subpart ZZZZ 

§ 63.6603(a)-Table 
2d.4 
§ 63.6595(a)(1) 
§ 63.6605(a) 
§ 63.6605(b) 
§ 63.6625(e) 
§ 63.6625(f) 
§ 63.6625(h) 
§ 63.6625(i) 
§ 63.6640(f)(1) 
§ 63.6640(f)(2) 
§ 63.6640(f)(2)(i) 
§ 63.6640(f)(4) 
§ 63.6640(f)(4)(i) 

For each existing 
emergency stationary CI 
RICE and black start 
stationary CI RICE, located 
at an area source, you must 
comply with the 
requirements as specified in 
Table 2d.4.a-c. 

§ 63.6625(i) 
§ 63.6640(a) 
§ 63.6640(a)-Table 
6.9.a.i 
§ 63.6640(a)-Table 
6.9.a.ii 

§ 63.6625(i) 
§ 63.6655(e) 
§ 63.6655(f) 
§ 63.6660(a) 
§ 63.6660(b) 
§ 63.6660(c) 

§ 63.6640(e) 
§ 63.6650(f) 

GRP-TURB / 
GRP-BLR 

EU 60KKKK-
0001 

NOX 40 CFR Part 60, 
Subpart KKKK 

§ 60.4320(a)-Table 
1 
§ 60.4320(a) 
§ 60.4320(b) 
§ 60.4333(a) 
§ 60.4333(b)(1) 
§ 60.4335(b)(1) 
[G]§ 60.4345 

Turbines operating at less 
than 75 percent of peak 
load, or turbines operating 
at temperatures less than 0 
degrees F with greater than 
30 MW output must meet 
the nitrogen oxides 
emission standard of 96 
ppm at 15 percent O2. 

§ 60.4333(b)(1) 
§ 60.4335(b)(1) 
[G]§ 60.4345 
§ 60.4350(a) 
§ 60.4350(b) 
§ 60.4350(d) 
§ 60.4350(e) 
§ 60.4350(f) 
§ 60.4350(h) 
[G]§ 60.4400(a) 
§ 60.4400(b) 
§ 60.4400(b)(1) 
§ 60.4400(b)(2) 
§ 60.4400(b)(4) 

[G]§ 60.4345 
§ 60.4350(b) 

[G]§ 60.4345 
§ 60.4350(d) 
§ 60.4375(a) 
§ 60.4380 
[G]§ 60.4380(b) 
§ 60.4395 

Formatted: Highlight
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

§ 60.4400(b)(5) 
§ 60.4400(b)(6) 
[G]§ 60.4405 

GRP-TURB / 
GRP-BLR 

EU 60KKKK-
0001 

SO2 40 CFR Part 60, 
Subpart KKKK 

§ 60.4330(a)(2) 
§ 60.4333(a) 

You must not burn in the 
subject stationary 
combustion turbine any fuel 
which contains total 
potential sulfur emissions in 
excess of 26 ng SO2/J 
(0.060 lb SO2/MMBtu) heat 
input. If your turbine 
simultaneously fires multiple 
fuels, each fuel must meet 
this requirement. 

§ 60.4365 
§ 60.4365(b) 
§ 60.4415(a) 
§ 60.4415(a)(2) 
§ 60.4415(a)(2)(ii) 

§ 60.4365(b) § 60.4375(a) 

GRP-VNT EP R1111 Opacity 30 TAC Chapter 
111, Visible 
Emissions 

§ 111.111(a)(1)(C) 
§ 111.111(a)(1)(E) 

Visible emissions from any 
stationary vent shall not 
exceed an opacity of 15% 
averaged over a six minute 
period for any source with a 
total flow rate of at least 
100,000 acfm unless a 
CEMS is installed. 

[G]§ 
111.111(a)(1)(F) 
** See Periodic 
Monitoring 
Summary 

None None 

Formatted: Highlight

Commented [GD1]: We want to include the unit GRP-BLR 
with the turbines so it is clear that both are subject to 60KKKK.  
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New Source Review Authorization References by Emissions Unit 
 
The following is a list of New Source Review (NSR) authorizations for emission units listed elsewhere in this operating permit.  The NSR authorizations are 
applicable requirements under 30 TAC Chapter 122 and enforceable under this operating permit.  
 

Unit/Group/Process 
 ID No. 

Emission Unit Name/Description New Source Review Authorization** 

AUXBLR AUXILARY BOILER 41166, PSDTX939 

CTG1 TURBINE 1 41166, 122616, PSDTX939, [161186] 

CTG2 TURBINE 2 41166, 122616, PSDTX939, [161185, 176399] 

E-CTOWER COOLING TOWER 41166, PSDTX939 

E-GEN EMERGENCY GENERATOR ENGINE 106.511/09/04/2000 

E-PUMP EMERGENCY FIRE WATER PUMP ENGINE 106.511/09/04/2000 

E-ST1 HRSG 1 STACK 41166, PSDTX939, 106.261/11/01/2003 [161186], 
106.262/11/01/2003 [161186] 

E-ST2 HRSG 2 STACK 41166, PSDTX939, 106.261/11/03/2003 [161186], 
106.262/11/01/2003 [161186] 

E-TANK8 240-GAL DIESEL TANK/FIRE WATER PUMP ENGINE 106.472/09/04/2000 

E-TANK9 750 GAL DIESEL TANK/EMERGENCY GENERATOR ENGINE 106.472/09/04/2000 

HRSG1 HRSG 1 41166, PSDTX939 

HRSG2 HRSG 2 41166, PSDTX939 

TANK19 PLANT GASOLINE TANK 106.473/09/04/2000 

TANK21 PLANT DIESEL TANK 106.472/09/04/2000 

UNLOAD-DSL DIESEL UNLOADING 106.472/09/04/2000 

UNLOAD-GAS GASOLINE UNLOADING 106.473/09/04/2000 

**This column may include Permit by Rule (PBR) numbers and version dates, PBR Registration numbers in brackets, Standard Permit Registration numbers, 
Minor NSR permit numbers, and Major NSR permit numbers. 
 

Commented [GD2]: PBRs in brackets need to be added. I 
am also including the PBR Supplemental table with the 
revisions from our call on 10/24/2024. 



 
 
OP-PBRSUP Updates: 

• Added PBR 176399 issued on 6/11/2024 to Table A (Page 1) and Table D (Page 5). 
• Updated the Unit IDs for the turbines to reflect CTG1 and CTG2. 

 
Please let me know if you have any questions or comments.  
 
Best Regards, 
 
Glenda De Leon 
Environmental Manager 
 
E   Glenda.DeLeon@ethosenergy.com 
M  +1-817-939-4066  

 

 

    

This email and its attachments may contain information which is confidential and / or legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient of this email 

please notify the sender immediately by email and delete this email and its attachments from your computer and IT systems. Yo u must not copy, re-

transmit, use or disclose (other than to the sender) the existence or contents of this email or its attachments or permit anyone else to do so.   
 

From: Savannah Quiros <Savannah.Quiros@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, October 17, 2024 3:29 PM 
To: De Leon, Glenda (EthosEnergy) <Glenda.DeLeon@ethosenergy.com> 
Cc: Bryan, Jordan (EthosEenergy) <Jordan.Bryan@ethosenergy.com>; Lamew, Rex (EthosEnergy) 
<Rex.Lamew@ethosenergy.com> 
Subject: RE: Working Draft Permit - FOP O2066/Project 36294, Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC/Wolf Hollow I 
 
Hi Glenda, Attached is the updated version of the WDP. Bel ow are som e notes about the WDP: Based on the unit attributes that were provided on the UA6, GRP-BLR receives non-applicability to NSPS Db and Chapter 117, Subchapter E. This means that  
 

Hi Glenda,  
 
Attached is the updated version of the WDP. Below are some notes about the WDP: 

• Based on the unit attributes that were provided on the UA6, GRP-BLR receives non-
applicability to NSPS Db and Chapter 117, Subchapter E. This means that the group will not 
show up in the Unit Summary table or Applicable Requirements Summary table. GRP-BLR 
still has its permit shields.  

mailto:Glenda.DeLeon@ethosenergy.com
mailto:Savannah.Quiros@tceq.texas.gov
mailto:Glenda.DeLeon@ethosenergy.com
mailto:Jordan.Bryan@ethosenergy.com
mailto:Rex.Lamew@ethosenergy.com
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Furldefense.com%2Fv3%2F__https%3A%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fcompany%2Fethosenergy%2F__%3B!!GnZUUc7pEbDt!4Pi3GqENFqU2Zd_jrNa281eYgO_T_gcglC-FDZ_Ue8Q8WT8OWGyPYXmoN4dIpMejyaSrTm0L4tIBVaYm5U3oAz9l3YRdhlPqQGPcVMiT%24&data=05%7C02%7CSavannah.Quiros%40tceq.texas.gov%7C84e162b47a70447b96db08dd3186bba9%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638721176959025049%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Ig%2BJr9MJtx9lPZ7Gjtvc2rvtpDkwrV3FQr57vGZqTHQ%3D&reserved=0
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Furldefense.com%2Fv3%2F__https%3A%2Fwww.youtube.com%2Fchannel%2FUCMP35rfJ-hkeETNrQbxPZ4w__%3B!!GnZUUc7pEbDt!4Pi3GqENFqU2Zd_jrNa281eYgO_T_gcglC-FDZ_Ue8Q8WT8OWGyPYXmoN4dIpMejyaSrTm0L4tIBVaYm5U3oAz9l3YRdhlPqQF3r39a2%24&data=05%7C02%7CSavannah.Quiros%40tceq.texas.gov%7C84e162b47a70447b96db08dd3186bba9%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638721176959038415%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=qfXVUADcddv34MMrMhSX4geVtMcry6xx0RO6j4edjF0%3D&reserved=0
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Furldefense.com%2Fv3%2F__https%3A%2Ftwitter.com%2FEthosEnergy__%3B!!GnZUUc7pEbDt!4Pi3GqENFqU2Zd_jrNa281eYgO_T_gcglC-FDZ_Ue8Q8WT8OWGyPYXmoN4dIpMejyaSrTm0L4tIBVaYm5U3oAz9l3YRdhlPqQIoRmArJ%24&data=05%7C02%7CSavannah.Quiros%40tceq.texas.gov%7C84e162b47a70447b96db08dd3186bba9%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638721176959051398%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=X8u6Ac0iOl3mbG8pIsDMuKSSlJX9vB%2F%2Fx2m6qyiV5lc%3D&reserved=0
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Furldefense.com%2Fv3%2F__https%3A%2Fwww.facebook.com%2FEthosEnergyGroup%2F__%3B!!GnZUUc7pEbDt!4Pi3GqENFqU2Zd_jrNa281eYgO_T_gcglC-FDZ_Ue8Q8WT8OWGyPYXmoN4dIpMejyaSrTm0L4tIBVaYm5U3oAz9l3YRdhlPqQHuePfeE%24&data=05%7C02%7CSavannah.Quiros%40tceq.texas.gov%7C84e162b47a70447b96db08dd3186bba9%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638721176959064257%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=KzrOfkHACpvAZieT6y8J8hcWxeN1r6RdV7ApC%2B06w7c%3D&reserved=0


• As for E-GEN and E-PUMP not being black start engines – that is just the citation text that is 
generated for both black start engines and CI RICEs. I believe the effective permit has this 
text as well.  

I’ve also attached the Major NSR Summary Table. Please note that it is the Summary Table from the 
effective permit (with only updates to the formatting). Please make updates/changes to the word 
document using the Track Changes reviewing mode and send it back to me.  
 
Please send me your comments/approval on the WDP and the track change Major NSR Summary 
Table document to me by email by 11/01/2024. 
 
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
Sent: Monday, October 14, 2024 1:40 PM 
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
 
Here you go! Thanks 
 
Best Regards, 
 
Glenda De Leon 
Environmental Manager 
 
E   Glenda.DeLeon@ethosenergy.com 
M  +1-817-939-4066  

 

 

mailto:savannah.quiros@tceq.texas.gov
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Furldefense.com%2Fv3%2F__http%3A%2Flinks.govdelivery.com%2Ftrack%3Ftype%3Dclick%26enid%3DZWFzPTEmbWFpbGluZ2lkPTIwMTgxMTAyLjk3MDg5MTgxJm1lc3NhZ2VpZD1NREItUFJELUJVTC0yMDE4MTEwMi45NzA4OTE4MSZkYXRhYmFzZWlkPTEwMDEmc2VyaWFsPTE3MzIwMjU1JmVtYWlsaWQ9ZGlhbm5lLmFuZGVyc29uQHRjZXEudGV4YXMuZ292JnVzZXJpZD1kaWFubmUuYW5kZXJzb25AdGNlcS50ZXhhcy5nb3YmZmw9JmV4dHJhPU11bHRpdmFyaWF0ZUlkPSYmJg%3D%3D%26%26%26104%26%26%26http%3A**Awww.tceq.texas.gov*goto*customersurvey__%3BLy8vLw!!GnZUUc7pEbDt!7XXj20Usz5IYy9pE_GEQwjf0Nb7elrTG-bcCkfSaam-Z4KpgCFNPR9Z7XSTEAhPnrPzFXVXuY9Y-aRh8nPGIaX_eiXDj1d1qZC5s2p9o%24&data=05%7C02%7CSavannah.Quiros%40tceq.texas.gov%7C84e162b47a70447b96db08dd3186bba9%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638721176959077063%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=i7TzpG2Wi9esmbM0%2BWSBi%2B6aUE2g40O5uwcdUSfxPHY%3D&reserved=0
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
Sent: Monday, October 14, 2024 1:03 PM 
To: De Leon, Glenda (EthosEnergy); Bryan, Jordan (EthosEenergy); Lamew, Rex 

(EthosEnergy) 
Subject: STEERS Air Title V Operating Permits Notice Signed 

 
This confirms the following application was signed by Rex Lamew ER065353 at 
10/14/2024 01:03 PM. 
 
Title V Existing: Reference Number 692141 
 
This notice has been sent to each individual having access to the referenced application 
through their ER Account. 
 
The application is now ready for payment of the application fee, unless the application is 
a Notice of Change or a Notice of Termination or a Notice of Deficiency. 
There is no application fee for Notice of Change or a Notice of Termination or a Notice 
of Deficiency but you must return to submit the application. 
 
After payment is made and the epay email is received confirming payment, you must 
return to submit the application. 
The application is still considered pending until it is submitted to TCEQ. 
 
You may access the application which is available in your work area in STEERS 
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://www3.tceq.texas.gov/steers/__;!!GnZUUc7pEbDt!_z
fVcWIweI5NPnkD0B0XLT5KUS86hy7lGB-l1Baia0gRhHmpzxjeLpdGxCLa-
QN2TLVdRXfMDrTcgJVxSmuvMghTAsIZ$.  
 
If you have any questions, please contact the STEERS Help Line at 512-239-6925 or by 
e-mail at steers@tceq.texas.gov. 
 
Best,  
 

Savannah Quiros (x1228) 
(they/them/theirs) 
Permit Reviewer – Title V 
 

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www3.tceq.texas.gov/steers/__;!!GnZUUc7pEbDt!_zfVcWIweI5NPnkD0B0XLT5KUS86hy7lGB-l1Baia0gRhHmpzxjeLpdGxCLa-QN2TLVdRXfMDrTcgJVxSmuvMghTAsIZ$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www3.tceq.texas.gov/steers/__;!!GnZUUc7pEbDt!_zfVcWIweI5NPnkD0B0XLT5KUS86hy7lGB-l1Baia0gRhHmpzxjeLpdGxCLa-QN2TLVdRXfMDrTcgJVxSmuvMghTAsIZ$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www3.tceq.texas.gov/steers/__;!!GnZUUc7pEbDt!_zfVcWIweI5NPnkD0B0XLT5KUS86hy7lGB-l1Baia0gRhHmpzxjeLpdGxCLa-QN2TLVdRXfMDrTcgJVxSmuvMghTAsIZ$


From: steers@tceq.texas.gov 
Sent: Monday, October 14, 2024 1:04 PM 
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
 
 Your application was successfully submitted and received by the TCEQ at 10/14/2024 
01:03 PM. 
 
 The submitted application will now be reviewed by the program area. You will be 
notified by the program area reviewing your application if more information is needed 
and of final action (approval or denial) of the application. 
 
 The Reference number for this submittal is 692141. 
 
 The Area ID for this submittal is 2066. 
 The Project ID for this submittal is 36294. 
 The STEERS confirmation number for this submittal is 571259. 
 The hash code for this submittal is 
CBE6C53DFD2C9E598239CBB023E8006A87A4DAC454A049CD3CB6CAD835A082D
8. 
 
You may access the copy of record (submitted application) from the submit log which is 
available by selecting Submissions from the Home page of STEERS 
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://www3.tceq.texas.gov/steers/__;!!GnZUUc7pEbDt!6E
Yn3x2ANtoM12r2vHSZ_e4hbfuw-
THW6uZnzdudvoyvHtUbnMPAlXapGmZUQ2YOKpCnyzIhN7iO6I5eIn83SLqKhuwQ$. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Air Permits division at 512-239-1250 or by 
e-mail at airperm@tceq.texas.gov. 
 
Best,  
 

Savannah Quiros (x1228) 
(they/them/theirs) 
Permit Reviewer – Title V 
 

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www3.tceq.texas.gov/steers/__;!!GnZUUc7pEbDt!6EYn3x2ANtoM12r2vHSZ_e4hbfuw-THW6uZnzdudvoyvHtUbnMPAlXapGmZUQ2YOKpCnyzIhN7iO6I5eIn83SLqKhuwQ$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www3.tceq.texas.gov/steers/__;!!GnZUUc7pEbDt!6EYn3x2ANtoM12r2vHSZ_e4hbfuw-THW6uZnzdudvoyvHtUbnMPAlXapGmZUQ2YOKpCnyzIhN7iO6I5eIn83SLqKhuwQ$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www3.tceq.texas.gov/steers/__;!!GnZUUc7pEbDt!6EYn3x2ANtoM12r2vHSZ_e4hbfuw-THW6uZnzdudvoyvHtUbnMPAlXapGmZUQ2YOKpCnyzIhN7iO6I5eIn83SLqKhuwQ$
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From: Savannah Quiros <Savannah.Quiros@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Monday, October 14, 2024 1:38 PM 
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
 
Perfect, thank you ! It would be really helpful if you could forward me that confirmation emai l that you get from STEERS once it’s been uploaded. Sincer ely, Savannah G. Quiros (they/them/theirs) Permit Reviewer TCEQ – APD – OP Section (Title  
 

Perfect, thank you! It would be really helpful if you could forward me that confirmation email that 
you get from STEERS once it’s been uploaded. 
 
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
Sent: Monday, October 14, 2024 12:56 PM 
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
 
Thank you for the quick response. I have uploaded the form in STEERS, and it is waiting submittal by 
the RO. I am also attaching the form (only page 88) in this email. 
 
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
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https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Furldefense.com%2Fv3%2F__https%3A%2Fwww.facebook.com%2FEthosEnergyGroup%2F__%3B!!GnZUUc7pEbDt!7XXj20Usz5IYy9pE_GEQwjf0Nb7elrTG-bcCkfSaam-Z4KpgCFNPR9Z7XSTEAhPnrPzFXVXuY9Y-aRh8nPGIaX_eiXDj1d1qZPpk5QAB%24&data=05%7C02%7CSavannah.Quiros%40tceq.texas.gov%7C84e162b47a70447b96db08dd3186bba9%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638721176959128187%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=H8viWfi2dAPA5itqmInldImDLIosnKE4eUx51MS6IFQ%3D&reserved=0


Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
Application Area-Wide Applicability Determinations and General Information 

Form OP-REQ1 
Federal Operating Permit Program 

TCEQ - 10043 (APDG 5733v46, Revised 11/20) OP-REQ1 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and  
may be revised periodically. (Title V IMS Release 11/20) Page 88 of 88 

Date: 

Permit No.: 

RN No.: 

For SOP applications, answer ALL questions unless otherwise directed. 
For GOP applications, answer ONLY these question unless otherwise directed.

Form OP-REQ1:  Page 88 

XII. NSR Authorizations (Attach additional sheets if necessary for sections E-J)

I. Permits by Rule (30 TAC Chapter 106) for the Application Area

A list of selected Permits by Rule (previously referred to 
FOP application is available in the instructions. 

as standard exemptions) that are required to be listed in the 

PBR No.: Version No./Date: 

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

J. Municipal Solid Waste and Industrial Hazardous Waste Permits With an Air Addendum

Permit No.: Issuance Date: 

Permit No.: Issuance Date: 

Permit No.: Issuance Date: 

Permit No.: Issuance Date: 

10/11/2024

O2066

100219195

106.122 9/4/2000

106.227 9/4/2000

106.263 11/1/2001

106.265 9/4/2000

106.452 9/4/2000
106.454 11/1/2001

106.472 9/4/2000

106.473 9/4/2000

106.511 9/4/2000

106.532  9/4/2000

106.433 9/4/2000

106.261 11/1/2003

106.262 11/1/2003
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From: Savannah Quiros <Savannah.Quiros@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Monday, October 14, 2024 12:03 PM 
To: De Leon, Glenda (EthosEnergy) <Glenda.DeLeon@ethosenergy.com> 
Subject: RE: Working Draft Permit - FOP O2066/Project 36294, Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC/Wolf Hollow I 
 
Hi Glenda, Apol ogies , I was looking at a different table from the OP-UA6; please disregard my request for an OP-UA 11. For the OP-PBRSUP, you can leave the dates as-is since you won’t be making any changes to it. Pleas e add the PBRs to the OP-REQ1 
 

Hi Glenda,  
 
Apologies, I was looking at a different table from the OP-UA6; please disregard my request for an 
OP-UA11. 
For the OP-PBRSUP, you can leave the dates as-is since you won’t be making any changes to it. 
Please add the PBRs to the OP-REQ1 page 88. 
In short- I only need an updated OP-REQ1 page 88 (no need to send the entire form). 
 
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
Sent: Friday, October 11, 2024 2:23 PM 
To: Savannah Quiros <Savannah.Quiros@tceq.texas.gov> 
Subject: RE: Working Draft Permit - FOP O2066/Project 36294, Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC/Wolf Hollow I 
Importance: High 
 
Good afternoon Savannah, 
 
Please see question and answer to your request below in red. I am confused on No. 2 since you are 
asking me to complete the unit attribute form for turbines for the boilers. 
 
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

 

 

    

This email and its attachments may contain information which is confidential and / or legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipi ent of this email 

please notify the sender immediately by email and delete this email and its attachments from your computer and IT  systems. You must not copy, re-

transmit, use or disclose (other than to the sender) the existence or contents of this email or its attachments or permit any one else to do so.  
 

From: Savannah Quiros <Savannah.Quiros@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, October 10, 2024 2:50 PM 
To: De Leon, Glenda (EthosEnergy) <Glenda.DeLeon@ethosenergy.com> 
Subject: RE: Working Draft Permit - FOP O2066/Project 36294, Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC/Wolf Hollow I 
 
Hi Glenda, I’ve been goi ng throug h your comm ents on the worki ng draft permit. In order to get some of the discrepancies res olved I need the fol lowi ng forms form you: OP-R EQ1 and OP-PBRSUP: Please add PBRs 106. 261 and 106. 262 to the OP-REQ 1 page  
 

Hi Glenda,  
I’ve been going through your comments on the working draft permit. In order to get some of the 
discrepancies resolved I need the following forms form you: 

• OP-REQ1 and OP-PBRSUP: Please add PBRs 106.261 and 106.262 to the OP-REQ1 page 
88 and OP-PBRSUP (make sure to redate all four tables, Tables A-D, when resubmitting the 
OP-PBRSUP) 

 
Do you want me to just update the dates in the OP-PBRSUP? Because PBRs 106.261 and 106.262 
are already included? 

 
 
 

• OP-UA11: Because GRP-BLR is no longer subject to Subpart Db, it needs to be on OP-UA11, 
Table 6a. From the OP-UA6 instructions: “Continue only if “Covered Under Subpart Da or 
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KKKK” is “NO.” If “Covered under Subpart Da or KKKK” is “YES,” complete Table 2a of this 
unit attribute form or Table 6a of Form OP-UA11, as applicable.” 

Unit ID GRP-BLR is for boilers and not turbines. OP-UA11 is for turbines, the boilers are part of OP-
UA6 for Boiler/Steam Generation/Steam Generation Unit Attributes. The turbines were included in 
OP-UA11. 

 
 
 
Please send these form through STEERS by 10/14/2024. 
 
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
Sent: Monday, September 16, 2024 1:52 PM 
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To: Savannah Quiros <Savannah.Quiros@tceq.texas.gov> 
Subject: RE: Working Draft Permit - FOP O2066/Project 36294, Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC/Wolf Hollow I 
 
Great! Thanks so much for the response, just wanted to make sure you received the WDP 
comments before the due date! 
 
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
Sent: Monday, September 16, 2024 1:47 PM 
To: De Leon, Glenda (EthosEnergy) <Glenda.DeLeon@ethosenergy.com> 
Subject: RE: Working Draft Permit - FOP O2066/Project 36294, Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC/Wolf Hollow I 
 
Hi Glenda, Yes, I’ve been receiving your emails . Apol ogies about my office phone, it’s been acting up lately. Sincerely, Sav annah G. Quiros (they/them/theirs ) Permit Reviewer OA/Air Permits Division/OP Section T exas Commissi on on Environmental  
 

Hi Glenda,  
 
Yes, I’ve been receiving your emails. Apologies about my office phone, it’s been acting up lately. 
 
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
Sent: Monday, September 16, 2024 12:59 PM 
To: Savannah Quiros <Savannah.Quiros@tceq.texas.gov> 
Subject: RE: Working Draft Permit - FOP O2066/Project 36294, Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC/Wolf Hollow I 
 
Good morning Savannah, 
 
Just want to follow up with you regarding the September 10th email below. At your convenience, can 
you please confirm that you have received the email below? I have contacted you a few times and I 
am wondering if my emails and phone calls have been received. 
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, September 10, 2024 10:46 AM 
To: Savannah.Quiros@tceq.texas.gov 
Cc: Bryan, Jordan (EthosEenergy) <Jordan.Bryan@ethosenergy.com>; Barnard, Kevin (EthosEnergy) 
<kevin.barnard@ethosenergy.com> 
Subject: RE: Working Draft Permit - FOP O2066/Project 36294, Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC/Wolf Hollow I 
Importance: High 
 
Good morning Savannah, 
 
Attached you will find our comments to the Wolf Hollow Title V Working Draft Permit (WDP). Below 
is a summary of the comments included in the WDP: 
 

• Per Project/Process Description (see attached): A wet compression installation triggered 
turbine modifications as defined in 40 CFR §60.14; therefore, the stationary combustion 
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turbines (GRP-TURB) and associated duct burners (GRP-BLR) became subject to 40 CFR 
60, Subpart KKKK.  The turbines and duct burners are no longer subject to 40 CFR 60 
Subpart GG or Subpart Db.  

o GRP-TURB: OP-UA11, Table 6 was included with the initial submittal where you can 
see the applicability for Subpart KKKK 

o GRP-BLR: OP-UA6, Table 3a, included with the initial submittal shows the Subpart 
KKKK applicability 

 
 

• Units E-GEN and E-PUMP are not black start engines per OP-UA2 “Service Type” selection. 
 

 
 
Please feel free to reach out if you have any questions related to the presented information.  
 
Best Regards, 
 
Glenda De Leon 
Environmental Manager 
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ATTACHMENT 1 
SITE DATA 

TITLE V SOP RENEWAL APPLICATION 

WOLF HOLLOW I POWER, LLC 

WOLF HOLLOW I 

The following documents are included in this section:   

 Project and Process Description
 Area Map
 Process Flow Diagram
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ATTACHMENT 1 
PROJECT/PROCESS DESCRIPTION 

Project Description 

Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC is submitting this Title V Site Operating Permit (SOP) 
Renewal Application for the Wolf Hollow I (the Plant) in accordance with Title 30 of 
the Texas Administrative Code (TAC) Chapter 122.  The Facility is located near 
Granbury, Texas, in Hood County and is currently authorized under SOP No. O2066. 

Wolf Hollow installed wet compression on both of its existing turbines (CTG1 and 
CTG2). The projects were registered and authorized on June 11, 2020, under Permits 
by Rule (PBR) No. 161185 and 161186.  The wet compression installation triggered 
turbine modifications as defined in 40 CFR §60.14; therefore, the stationary 
combustion turbines (GRP-TURB) and associated duct burners (GRP-BLR) became 
subject to 40 CFR 60, Subpart KKKK. The turbines and duct burners are no longer 
subject to 40 CFR 60 Subpart GG or Subpart Db.  Please note that the wet 
compression turbine modification does not trigger applicability to 40 CFR 60, 
Subpart TTTT, since Subpart TTTT establishes standards and applicability for new and 
reconstructed stationary gas turbines, but it does not apply to modified stationary 
gas turbines. 

Figure 1-1 is an area map showing the location of the Plant and the surrounding area.  
Figure 1-2 presents a process flow diagram of the Plant.  

Process Description 

Wolf Hollow I is a natural gas-fired power plant designed to generate nominally 807 
megawatts (MW) of electrical power. The Plant operates two Mitsubishi Heavy 
Industries (MHI) G-Frame Combustion Gas Turbines (CTG1 and CTG2) in combined-
cycle mode, each with a 243.3 MMBtu/hr duct-fired heat recovery steam generator 
(HRSG1 and HRSG2). The heat recovery steam generators direct steam to a 299 MWe 
(nominal) Steam Turbine Generator. Each gas turbine power block includes an 
advanced combustion turbine, including an air compressor section, gas combustion 
system, power turbine and generator. Exhaust gas exiting each power turbine is 
ducted to a fired boiler commonly known as a heat recovery steam generator 
(HSRG) where steam is produced to generate additional electricity in a steam 
turbine generator. Natural gas-fired duct burners located within the HRSGs are used 
for supplemental firing to increase steam output. Exhaust gas exiting the HRSGs 
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passes through multi-pollutant catalytic control systems to reduce CO and NOx 
emissions. VOC emissions are also reduced by these systems. The exhaust gas is 
then routed from the control systems to stacks (E-ST1 and E-ST2) for discharge to the 
atmosphere.  
The turbines can also operate in simple cycle mode without bypassing the HRSG or 
emission controls in which the steam turbine is not being utilized to generate 
electricity. In this scenario the duct burners will not be operated, and any steam 
produced from the HRSG will go back into the condensation system. This scenario 
will only happen when the steam turbine is not operating or it is out of service. This 
scenario does not increase emissions and the turbines will continue to meet their 
emission limits. 

The Plant also operates a 142.2 MMBtu/hr auxiliary boiler (AUXBLR) to supply heating 
steam for the steam turbine seals and for sparging of the HRSG steam drums during 
down periods. The auxiliary boiler is a fire-tube type and combusts only natural gas. 
Makeup water is received from the demineralizer system that feeds the auxiliary 
boiler deaerator.  

A cooling tower (E-CTOWER) is used to absorb heat rejected from the combined 
cycle. Water from the cooling tower is commonly referred to as "main" cooling water. 
A dedicated set of cooling water pumps is provided for this service. Additional 
cooling water is required for auxiliary plant cooling. Cooling water is not used for 
direct cooling of plant auxiliaries. Rather, a closed loop auxiliary cooling system 
consisting of pumps, expansion tank and heat exchangers is provided for this 
purpose. The cooling tower is designed to evaporate clean water, which is the 
mechanism that provides cooling.  

A back-up diesel generator engine (E-GEN) is located at the Plant to provide 
electricity in the event of a power failure. A fire water pump diesel engine (E-PUMP) 
is located at the Plant to drive the plant fire water pump in case of a fire event.  

Pipeline-quality natural gas is received at the Plant via underground gas pipelines. 
This natural gas may be heated as necessary using hot air extracted from the gas 
turbines. The Plant operates miscellaneous storage tanks for aqueous ammonia, 
gasoline fuel, diesel fuel, and water treatment chemicals (caustics, acids, etc.) The 
aqueous ammonia tanks are pressurized. Due to contents and size, these tanks are 
not subject to the federal requirements of 40 CFR Part 60 Subpart Kb. 

The Plant installed wet compression on both of its existing turbines (CTG1 and CTG2). 
In addition, the Plant authorized a Kai upgrade to increase output and efficiency on 
CTG1.  The installation of wet compression can increase the power output of the 
combustion by reducing the inlet air temperatures on the compressor. Wet 
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compression is expected to operate during the summer months. Thermal barrier 
coatings and optimized cooling schemes are applied to turbine components to 
achieve the Kai Upgrade Performance.  



Stationary Reciprocating Internal Combustion Engine Attributes 
Form OP-UA2 (Page 4) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Table 2a:  Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 63 (40 CFR Part 63) 

Subpart ZZZZ:  National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Stationary Reciprocating Internal Combustion Engines 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

TCEQ-10003 (APD-ID 28v2.0, Revised 11/22) OP-UA2 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit 
requirements and may be revised periodically. (Title V Release 11/22) Page ______ of _____  

Date Permit No. Regulated Entity No. 

Unit ID No. SOP/GOP Index No. HAP Source Brake HP 

Construction/ 
Reconstruction 

Date 

Nonindustrial 
Emergency 

Engine Service Type 
Stationary RICE 

Type 

8/22



02/01/2024 O2066 RN100219195

AUXBLR 60Db-0001

GRP-BLR 60DB-0001

97-05CR 100-250

100-250

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

YES

NO

05+M



60Db-0001AUXBLR NG NO NO OTHR OTHR F10-NG

RN100219195O206602/01/2024



60Db-0001AUXBLR

02/01/2024 O2066 RN100219195

NO NO NO



60Db-0001AUXBLR NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE OTHER NGHIGH

02/01/2024 O2066 RN100219195



TCEQ-10023 (APD ID45v5.0, revised 08/23) OP-UA11 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and may be revised periodically. (Title V Release 0  Page _____ of _____ 

Stationary Turbine Attributes 
Form OP-UA11 (Page 12) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Table 6a:  Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations (40 CFR Part 60) 

Subpart KKKK:  Stationary Combustion Turbines 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

Date Permit No. Regulated Entity No. 

Unit ID No. SOP Index No. Unit Type 
Construction/Modification 

Date Heat Input Subject to Da Service Type NOx Standard Fuel Type 

02/01

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
Form OP-UA11 (Page 13) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Table 6b:  Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations (40 CFR Part 60) 

Subpart KKKK:  Stationary Combustion Turbines 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

Date Permit No. Regulated Entity No. 

Unit ID No. SOP Index No. 75% of Peak 30 MW Turbine Use NOx Control NOx Monitoring 
Common Steam 

Header Duct Burner 

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
Form OP-UA11 (Page 14) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Table 6c:  Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations (40 CFR Part 60) 

Subpart KKKK:  Stationary Combustion Turbines 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

Date Permit No. Regulated Entity No. 

Unit ID No. SOP Index No. Location SO2 Standard Fuel Monitoring Fuel Quality 
Performance 

Test 
Intermediate 

Storage Fuel Schedules 

02/01/
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FEDERAL OPERATING PERMIT 

A FEDERAL OPERATING PERMIT IS HEREBY ISSUED TO 

Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC 

AUTHORIZING THE OPERATION OF 

Wolf Hollow I 

Fossil Fuel Electric Power Generation 

LOCATED AT 

Hood County, Texas 

Latitude 32° 20′ 24″   Longitude 97° 44′ 8″  

Regulated Entity Number:  RN100219195 

 
This permit is issued in accordance with and subject to the Texas Clean Air Act (TCAA), Chapter  382 of 
the Texas Health and Safety Code and Title 30 Texas Administrative Code Chapter 122 
(30 TAC Chapter 122), Federal Operating Permits.  Under 30 TAC Chapter 122, this permit constitutes 
the permit holder’s authority to operate the site, emission units and affected source listed in this permit.  
Operations of the site, emission units and affected source listed in this permit are subject to all additional 
rules or amended rules and orders of the Commission pursuant to the TCAA. 
 
This permit does not relieve the permit holder from the responsibility of obtaining New Source Review 
authorization for new, modified, or existing facilities in accordance with 30 TAC Chapter 116, Control of 
Air Pollution by Permits for New Construction or Modification. 
 
The site, emission units and affected source authorized by this permit shall be operated in accordance 
with 30 TAC Chapter 122, the general terms and conditions, special terms and conditions, and 
attachments contained herein. 
 
This permit shall expire five years from the date of issuance.  The renewal requirements specified in 
30 TAC § 122.241 must be satisfied in order to renew the authorization to operate the site, emission units 
and affected source. 
 

 Permit No:  O2066 Issuance Date:     

   
  For the Commission 
 

Commented [JB1]: This is Wolf Hollow I / Constellation 

Commented [GD2R1]: Please replace Coordinates with:  
32° 20’ 01”, -97° 44’ 01” 
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Unit Summary 
 

Unit/Group/ 
Process ID No. 

Unit Type Group/Inclusive 
Units 

SOP Index No. Regulation Requirement Driver 

AUXBLR BOILERS/STEAM 
GENERATORS/STEAM 
GENERATING UNITS 

N/A 60Db-0001 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart Db No changing attributes. 

E-GEN SRIC ENGINES N/A 63ZZZZ-1 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart 
ZZZZ 

No changing attributes. 

E-PUMP SRIC ENGINES N/A 63ZZZZ-1 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart 
ZZZZ 

No changing attributes. 

GRP-BLR BOILERS/STEAM 
GENERATORS/STEAM 
GENERATING UNITS 

HRSG1, HRSG2 60Db-0001 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart 
KKKK Subpart Db 

No changing attributes. 

GRP-TURB STATIONARY TURBINES CTG1, CTG2 60GG-0001 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart 
KKKK 
Subpart GG 

No changing attributes. 

GRP-VNT EMISSION 
POINTS/STATIONARY 
VENTS/PROCESS VENTS 

E-ST1, E-ST2 R1111 30 TAC Chapter 111, Visible 
Emissions 

No changing attributes. 

Commented [GD3]: Per Project/Process Description in 
Attachment 1 and Unit Attribute forms (OP-UA6), the turbines 
(GRP-TURB) and associated duct burners (GRP-BLR) 
became subject to 40 CFR 60, Subpart KKKK. The Duct 
Burners are no longer subject to Subpart Db. 

Commented [GD4]: Per Project/Process Description in 
Attachment 1 and Unit Attribute forms (OP-UA11), the 
turbines (GRP-TURB) and associated duct burners (GRP-
BLR) became subject to 40 CFR 60, Subpart KKKK. The 
turbines are no longer subject to Subpart GG. 
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

AUXBLR EU 60Db-
0001 

NOX 40 CFR Part 60, 
Subpart Db 

§ 60.44b(k) Affected facilities that meet 
the criteria described in 
§60.44b(j)(1), (2), and (3), 
and that have a heat input 
capacity of 73 MW (250 
MMBtu/hr) or less, are not 
subject to the NOX 
emission limits under this 
section. 

§ 60.46b(g) [G]§ 60.49b(d) 
§ 60.49b(o) 
[G]§ 60.49b(p) 

§ 60.49b(a) 
§ 60.49b(a)(1) 
§ 60.49b(a)(2) 
§ 60.49b(a)(3) 
§ 60.49b(q) 
§ 60.49b(q)(1) 
§ 60.49b(q)(3) 
§ 60.49b(w) 

AUXBLR EU 60Db-
0001 

PM 40 CFR Part 60, 
Subpart Db 

§ 60.40b(a) This subpart applies to each 
steam generating unit 
constructed, modified, or 
reconstructed after 6/19/84, 
and that has a heat input 
capacity from fuels 
combusted in the unit > 29 
MW (100 MMBtu/hr). 

None [G]§ 60.49b(d) 
§ 60.49b(o) 

§ 60.49b(a) 
§ 60.49b(a)(1) 
§ 60.49b(a)(3) 

AUXBLR EU 60Db-
0001 

PM 
(Opacity) 

40 CFR Part 60, 
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

E-GEN EU 63ZZZZ-1 112(B) 
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

Commented [GD5]: Not black start per UA2, please update 
Subpart ZZZZ applicability. 
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

GRP-BLR EU 60Db-
0001 

NOX 40 CFR Part 60, 
Subpart Db 

§ 60.44b(l)(1) 
§ 60.44b(h) 
§ 60.44b(i) 
§ 60.46b(a) 
§ 60.48b(h) 

Affected facilities 
combusting coal, oil, or 
natural gas, or a mixture of 
these fuels, or any other 
fuels: a limit of 86 ng/JI 
(0.20 lb/million Btu) heat 
input unless the affected 
facility meets the specified 
requirements. 

§ 60.46b(c) 
§ 60.46b(f) 
[G]§ 60.46b(f)(1) 

[G]§ 60.49b(d) 
§ 60.49b(o) 
[G]§ 60.49b(p) 

§ 60.49b(a) 
§ 60.49b(a)(1) 
§ 60.49b(a)(3) 
§ 60.49b(b) 

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

Commented [GD6]: Not black start, please update Subpart 
ZZZZ applicability. 

Commented [GD7]: GRP-BLR is no longer subject to 
Subpar Db. GRP-BLR is subject to Subpart KKKK. Please 
correct applicability.  
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

GRP-TURB EU 60GG-
0001 

NOX 40 CFR Part 60, 
Subpart GG 

§ 60.332(a)(1) 
§ 60.332(a)(3) 

No owner or operator shall 
discharge into the 
atmosphere from any 
stationary gas turbine, any 
gases which contain 
nitrogen oxides in excess of 
the amount as determined 
from the specified equation. 

[G]§ 60.334(b) 
§ 60.334(c) 
§ 60.334(j) 
§ 60.334(j)(1) 
[G]§ 60.334(j)(1)(iii) 
[G]§ 60.335(a) 
§ 60.335(b)(2) 
§ 60.335(b)(3) 

[G]§ 60.334(b) § 60.334(j) 
§ 60.334(j)(5) 

GRP-TURB EU 60GG-
0001 

SO2 40 CFR Part 60, 
Subpart GG 

§ 60.333(b) No stationary gas turbine 
shall burn any fuel which 
contains sulfur in excess of 
0.8% by weight. 

§ 60.334(h) 
[G]§ 60.334(h)(3) 

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

Commented [GD8]: The turbines are no longer subject to 
Subpart GG, please replace with applicability for Subpart 
KKKK based on Unit Attributes OP-UA11. 
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Permit Shield 
 
The Executive Director of the TCEQ has determined that the permit holder is not required to comply with the specific regulation(s) identified for each emission 
unit, group, or process in this table. 

Unit / Group /  
Process ID No. 

Group / Inclusive Units Regulation Basis of Determination 

E-CTOWER N/A 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart Q Chromium cleaning compounds not used. 

E-GEN N/A 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart IIII Did not commence construction after July 11, 
2005. 

E-PUMP N/A 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart IIII Did not commence construction after July 11, 
2005. 

E-TANK8 N/A 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart Kb Storage capacity less than 75 cubic meters 

E-TANK9 N/A 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart Kb Storage capacity less than 75 cubic meters 

GRP-BLR HRSG1, HRSG2 30 TAC Chapter 112, Sulfur Compounds Steam generator does not fire liquid or solid fuel. 

GRP-BLR HRSG1, HRSG2 30 TAC Chapter 117, Subchapter E, Division 
1 

Heat recovery steam generators were 
constructed after December 31, 1995. 

GRP-BLR HRSG1, HRSG2 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart Da Not capable of combusting more than 73 
MW (250 MMBtu/hr) heat input of fossil fuel 
(either alone or in combination with any other 
fuel). 
 

GRP-TURB CTG1, CTG2 30 TAC Chapter 117, Subchapter E, Division 
1 

Heat recovery steam generators were 
constructed after December 31, 1995. 

GRP-TURB CTG1, CTG2 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart KKKK Did not commence construction, modification, or 
reconstruction after February 18, 2005. 

GRP-TURB CTG1, CTG2 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart YYYY Combustion turbines not located at a major 
source of HAP emissions. 

TANK19 N/A 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart Kb Storage vessel has capacity less than 75 cubic 
meters (19,813 gallons) 

TANK21 N/A 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart Kb Storage vessel has capacity less than 75 cubic 
meters (19,813 gallons) 

Formatted: Strikethrough

Commented [GD9]: Units were modified in 2020; therefore 
they are subject to Subpart KKKK. This is no longer a permit 
shield. 

Formatted: Strikethrough
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New Source Review Authorization References 
 
The New Source Review authorizations listed in the table below are applicable requirements under 30 
TAC Chapter 122 and enforceable under this operating permit. 
 

Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) Permits 

PSD Permit No.:  PSDTX939 Issuance Date:  02/07/2001  10/31/2019 

Title 30 TAC Chapter 116 Permits, Special Permits, and Other Authorizations (Other Than Permits 
By Rule, PSD Permits, or NA Permits) for the Application Area. 

Authorization No.:  41166 Issuance Date:  10/31/2019 

Authorization No.:  122616 Issuance Date:  07/27/2023 

Permits By Rule (30 TAC Chapter 106) for the Application Area 

Number:  106.122 Version No./Date:  09/04/2000 

Number:  106.227 Version No./Date:  09/04/2000 

Number: 106.261 (missing from list) Version No. Date: 11/01/2003 

Number: 106.262 (missing from list) Version No. Date: 11/01/2003 

Number:  106.263 Version No./Date:  11/01/2001 

Number:  106.265 Version No./Date:  09/04/2000 

Number: 106.433 (missing from list) Version No./Date: 9/4/2000 

Number:  106.452 Version No./Date:  09/04/2000 

Number:  106.454 Version No./Date:  11/01/2001 

Number:  106.472 Version No./Date:  09/04/2000 

Number:  106.473 Version No./Date:  09/04/2000 

Number:  106.511 Version No./Date:  09/04/2000 

Number:  106.532 Version No./Date:  09/04/2000 

 
 

Commented [JB10]: Previous permit lists 7/9/2012 but 
application says 2/7/2001 

Commented [GD11R10]: Should be 10/31/2019. 
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

E-ST1 HRSG 1 STACK 41166, PSDTX939 

E-ST2 HRSG 2 STACK 41166, PSDTX939 

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
 

Commented [GD12]: PBR Registrations are included in 
brackets 

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

please notify the sender immediately by email and delete this email and its attachments from your computer and IT systems. You must not copy, re-

transmit, use or disclose (other than to the sender) the existence or contents of this email or its attachments or permit any one else to do so.  
 
 
From: Savannah Quiros <Savannah.Quiros@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Wednesday, August 28, 2024 4:38 PM 
To: Bryan, Jordan (EthosEenergy) <Jordan.Bryan@ethosenergy.com> 
Subject: Working Draft Permit - FOP O2066/Project 36294, Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC/Wolf Hollow I 
 
Jordyn, I have conducted a techni cal review of the renew al application for W olf H oll ow I Power, LLC, W ol f Holl ow I. An el ectr onic copy of the Worki ng Draft Permit (WDP) is attached for your review. This WDP contai ns the TCEQ determi nation of  
 

Jordyn,  
 
I have conducted a technical review of the renewal application for Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC, Wolf 
Hollow I. An electronic copy of the Working Draft Permit (WDP) is attached for your review. This 
WDP contains the TCEQ determination of applicable requirements based on the information 
submitted in your application, and any updates provided.  
 
Please review the WDP and submit to me any comments you may have, or your explicit approval, 
on the working draft permit by 09/27/2024. Please submit a written response by this deadline, even 
if you are not making any comments on the content of the WDP. 
 
Please review the second portion of the “SOP Technical Review Fact Sheet” located at 
http://www.tceq.texas.gov/assets/public/permitting/air/Guidance/Title_V/sop_wdp_factsheet.pdf. 
This guidance contains important information regarding WDP review and comment procedures.  
 
Note that a Certification by Responsible Official (Form OP-CRO1) for any uncertified application 
information, including application updates supporting the WDP comments, is required. After final 
review of the WDP, additional changes supported by application updates may require certification. 
I will advise you of these changes at a later date. Prior to transmittal of the Public 
Notice/Announcement Authorization Package, a duly signed OP-CRO1 form may be required which 
includes the specific dates or time-period of all submitted application documentation that was not 
previously certified. I will advise you of this requirement prior to sending the Public 
Notice/Announcement Authorization package.  
 
Application updates may now be submitted through Title V STEERS. Any application updates that 
are submitted by the RO/DAR through STEERS are certified and do not require the submittal of an 
original OP-CRO1. Application updates that are provided through email or physical mail require 
certification using an original signature OP-CRO1.  
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Please notify if/when these updates have been submitted.  
 
As required on Form OP-1, question IV.D, please remember the FOP application and all 
application updates must be submitted to EPA Region 6 at R6AirPermitsTX@epa.gov and to 
the TCEQ regional office having jurisdiction. This submittal information can be found on our 
website at Where to Submit FOP Applications and Permit-Related Documents. 
 
Please contact me if you have any questions regarding the guidelines, the project schedule, or any 
other details regarding your application or permit.  
 
Thank you for your cooperation. 
 
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
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From: Bryan, Jordan (EthosEenergy) <Jordan.Bryan@ethosenergy.com> 
Sent: Thursday, August 22, 2024 1:09 PM 
To: Savannah Quiros 
Cc: r6airpermitstx@epa.gov; TCEQR4 
Subject: RE: Technical Review - FOP O2066/Project 36294, Wolf Hollow I Power, 

LLC/Wolf Hollow I 
Attachments: OP-UA2 Table 2 - Page 4 REV 08-22-24.pdf 
 
As requested, form OP-UA2 for FOP O2066/Project 36294, Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC/Wolf Hollow I has 
been updated and submitted via STEERS. The updated form is also attached for review. 
Please advise if there are any further questions or concerns. 
 
Regards, 
 
Jordan Bryan 
HSE Manager 
(O) Wolf Hollow I – 817.579.4720 
jordan.bryan@ethosenergy.com  
  

 
  

 
  
This email and its attachments may contain information which is confidential and/or legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient of 

this email please notify the sender immediately by email and delete this email and its attachments from your computer and IT systems. You 

must not copy, re-transmit, use or disclose (other than to the sender) the existence or contents of this email or its attachments or permit 

anyone else to do so. 
 
 
 

From: Savannah Quiros <Savannah.Quiros@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, August 22, 2024 9:33 AM 
To: Bryan, Jordan (EthosEenergy) <Jordan.Bryan@ethosenergy.com> 
Subject: Technical Review - FOP O2066/Project 36294, Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC/Wolf Hollow I 
 
Jordyn, My nam e is Savannah Quiros and I have been assigned to the Feder al Operating Permit (FOP) renew al applicati on of Permit No. O2066 for W ol f Holl ow I Power, LLC, Wol f Holl ow I. Thi s application has been assigned Project No. 36294. Pl ease  
 

Jordyn,  
 
My name is Savannah Quiros and I have been assigned to the Federal Operating Permit (FOP) 
renewal application of Permit No. O2066 for Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC, Wolf Hollow I. This 
application has been assigned Project No. 36294. Please address all correspondence pertaining to 
this permit application, including any updates, to me at the address below, and use both the Permit 
and Project reference numbers above to facilitate tracking.   
 
In technical review the following deficiencies were noted: 

• Form OP-UA2, Table 2a, Page 4: Unit ID E-PUMP. The Brake HP entry “100-250+” is not a 
valid code. Please resubmit with a valid Brake HP code.  
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



Please submit the requested form through STEERS by 09/04/2024. 
  
In addition, I wanted to let you know that EPA has, on occasion, objected to Title V permits based 
on the following:    

a. NSR permit and PBR monitoring sufficiency –please refer to our periodic monitoring 
guidance for reference of monitoring that EPA has, so far, considered sufficient.  

b. Reference to confidential business information (CBI) in NSR permits and PBR submittals.  
c. High level terms in the SOP Applicable Requirement Summary Table. The high level terms 

are sometimes used in SOPs when unit attribute forms have not yet been updated due to 
regulatory amendments.  

d. Accuracy of PBR information provided on the supplemental table and in the permit – please 
refer to Forms OP-PBRSUP and OP-REQ1 Instructions.  

If you have any questions or concerns on any of these items or think you need to do any additional 
updates, let me know and we can discuss further.  
  
Application updates may now be submitted through Title V STEERS. Any application updates that 
are submitted by the RO/DAR through STEERS are certified and do not require the submittal of an 
original signature OP-CRO1. Application updates that are provided through email or physical mail 
require certification using an original signature OP-CRO1.   
  
Please notify me when these updates have been submitted.  
  
As required on Form OP-1, question IV.D, please remember the FOP application and all 
application updates must be submitted to EPA Region 6 at R6AirPermitsTX@epa.gov and to 
the TCEQ regional office having jurisdiction. This submittal information can be found on our 
website at Where to Submit FOP Applications and Permit-Related Documents.  
   
Please review the “SOP Technical Review Fact Sheet” located at 
http://www.tceq.texas.gov/assets/public/permitting/air/Guidance/Title_V/sop_wdp_factsheet.pdf. 
This guidance contains important information regarding the review process and application update 
procedures.  Contact me if you have any questions regarding the guidelines, the project schedule, 
or any other details regarding your application or permit.  
  
Please confirm receipt of this email. Thank you for your cooperation. 
 
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

mailto:R6AirPermitsTX@epa.gov
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Furldefense.com%2Fv3%2F__https%3A%2Fwww.tceq.texas.gov%2Fpermitting%2Fair%2Ftitlev%2Fsubmittal.html__%3B!!GnZUUc7pEbDt!7o145tjUKXMSW8VDhL0Qpv2p2Role3JE7eoC_rgGLtCek8ASct_96VlSJcGiMeTA185_6ikVglvJejmjyFMEH-u-T1VDu41KGbNdxo9m%24&data=05%7C02%7CSavannah.Quiros%40tceq.texas.gov%7C761eb5e739804c9eba0108dcc2d577d4%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638599469594898879%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=b3hat2C5v5gIXYuuXS%2B1CTLDHo%2Bv7LdllBu%2FMbmTBE0%3D&reserved=0
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Furldefense.com%2Fv3%2F__http%3A%2Fwww.tceq.texas.gov%2Fassets%2Fpublic%2Fpermitting%2Fair%2FGuidance%2FTitle_V%2Fsop_wdp_factsheet.pdf__%3B!!GnZUUc7pEbDt!7o145tjUKXMSW8VDhL0Qpv2p2Role3JE7eoC_rgGLtCek8ASct_96VlSJcGiMeTA185_6ikVglvJejmjyFMEH-u-T1VDu41KGfyWSR92%24&data=05%7C02%7CSavannah.Quiros%40tceq.texas.gov%7C761eb5e739804c9eba0108dcc2d577d4%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638599469594907339%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=9JOY61lg2%2FzaqtZychEhWuGZ8t%2FLy3KlW%2FxSOyx7ex4%3D&reserved=0
mailto:savannah.quiros@tceq.texas.gov


 

 

 How are we doing?  Fill out our online customer satisfaction 
survey at www.tceq.texas.gov/customersurvey 
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r) etnosEnergy wolf Hollow I Pow6r, LLc

92Ol Wolf Bol ow Court

Cranbury, TX 76048

Via STEERS

February 1,2024

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality
Air Permits lnitial Review Team (MC-161)
'l2lOO Park 35 Circle, Building C

Austin, TX 78753

subject Title v SOP No. 02066 Renewal Application
Wolf Hollow I (RNIOOZ9I95)
Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC (CN5OOrf,Or32)

Rex Lamew
Facility Manager

CC: Kimberli Fowler, Air Section Manager, TCEQ Region 4 - DFW, 23og Gravel Drive, Fort Worth,
Texas 761I8
Via email to R6AirPermitsTx(aeoa-oov
Kevin Barnard, Senior Environmental Director, EthosEnergy

ethosenergy.com

/.1r,,

To Whom it May Concern:

Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC is submitting the attached application to the Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality FCEQ) for the Title V Standard Operating Permit (soP) No. O 2066 Renewal
Application for Wolf Hollow I (the Plant) located near cranbury, in Hood County, Texas. Wolf Hollow
is submitting this renewal application In accordance with 30 TAC chapter 122. This renewal
application is being submitted within the required timeframe of six to eighteen months prior to the
Augusl 21, 2024, expi ration d ate.

lf you have any questions or require additional information regarding this submission, please

contactJordan Bryan at 817 -r79-472O ot at tardaD.il-rya n@qthascrrergy,e,am.

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
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ATTACHMENT 2 
ADMINISTRATIVE DATA 

 
TITLE V SOP RENEWAL APPLICATION 

 
WOLF HOLLOW I POWER, LLC 

 
WOLF HOLLOW I 

 
 
 

The following Administrative Forms are included in this section:   
 
• OP-1 – Site Information Summary 
• OP-2 – Application for Permit Revision/Renewal  
• OP-ACPS – Application Compliance Plan and Schedule   
• OP-AR1 – Acid Rain Permit Application 
• Wolf Hollow Certificate of Representation 
• OP-CRO1 – Certification by Responsible Official and Certification by Designated              

Representative Acid Rain, Cross-State Air Pollution Rule (SAPR) 
 

 



Federal Operating Permit Program 
Site Information Summary 

Form OP-1 (Page 1) 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

Please print or type all information. Direct any questions regarding this application form to the Air Permits Division at 
(512) 239-1250 or to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality, Office of Air, Air Permits Division (MC 163), 
P.O. Box 13087, Austin, Texas 78711-3087. 

I. Company Identifying Information 

A. Company Name: 

B. Customer Reference Number (CN): CN 

C. Submittal Date (mm/dd/yyyy): 

II. Site Information 

A. Site Name: 

B. Regulated Entity Reference Number (RN): RN 

C. Indicate affected state(s) required to review permit application: (Check the appropriate box[es].) 

AR CO KS LA NM OK N/A 

D. Indicate all pollutants for which the site is a major source based on the site’s potential to emit: 
(Check the appropriate box[es].) 

VOC NOX SO2 PM10 CO Pb HAPS 

Other: 

E. Is the site a non-major source subject to the Federal Operating Permit Program? YES NO 

F. Is the site within a local program area jurisdiction? YES NO 

G. Will emissions averaging be used to comply with any Subpart of 40 CFR Part 63? YES NO 

H. Indicate the 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart(s) that will use emissions averaging: 

III. Permit Type 

A. Type of Permit Requested: (Select only one response ) 

Site Operating Permit (SOP) Temporary Operating Permit (TOP) General Operating Permit (GOP) 

TCEQ 10002 (APD ID 251v1, revised 09/23) OP-1 
This form is for use by sources subject to air quality permit requirements 
and may be revised periodically. Page _____ of _____ 

Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC

600130132

02/01/2024

Wolf Hollow I

100219195



Federal Operating Permit Program 
Site Information Summary 

Form OP-1 (Page 2) 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

IV. Initial Application Information (Complete for Initial Issuance Applications Only.) 

A. Is this submittal an abbreviated or a full application? Abbreviated Full 

B. If this is a full application, is the submittal a follow-up to an abbreviated application? YES NO 

C. If this is an abbreviated application, is this an early submittal for a combined 
SOP and Acid Rain permit? YES NO 

D. Has an electronic copy of this application been submitted (or is being submitted) to EPA? 
(Refer to the form instructions for additional information.) YES NO 

E. Has the required Public Involvement Plan been included with this application? YES NO 

V. Confidential Information 

A. Is confidential information submitted in conjunction with this application? YES NO 

VI. Responsible Official (RO) Identifying Information 

RO Name Prefix: ( Mr. Mrs. Ms. Dr.) 

RO Full Name: 

RO Title: 

Employer Name: 

Mailing Address: 

City: 

State: 

ZIP Code: 

Territory: 

Country: 

Foreign Postal Code: 

Internal Mail Code: 

Telephone No.: 

Fax No.: 

Email: 

TCEQ 10002 (APD ID 251v1, revised 09/23) OP-1 
This form is for use by sources subject to air quality permit requirements 
and may be revised periodically. Page _____ of _____ 

Rex LaMew

Facility Manager

EthosEnergy Power Operations, LLC

9201 Wolf Hollow Court

Granbury

Texas

76048

928-208-7282

rex.lamew@ethosenergy.com



Federal Operating Permit Program 
Site Information Summary 

Form OP-1 (Page 3) 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

VII. Technical Contact Identifying Information (Complete if different from RO.) 

Technical Contact Name Prefix: ( Mr. Mrs. Ms. Dr.) 

Technical Contact Full Name: 

Technical Contact Title: 

Employer Name: 

Mailing Address: 

City: 

State: 

ZIP Code: 

Territory: 

Country: 

Foreign Postal Code: 

Internal Mail Code: 

Telephone No.: 

Fax No.: 

Email: 

VIII. Reference Only Requirements (For reference only.) 

A. State Senator: 

B. State Representative: 

C. Has the applicant paid emissions fees for the most recent agency fiscal year 
(Sept. 1 - August 31)? YES NO N/A 

D. Is the site subject to bilingual notice requirements pursuant to 30 TAC § 122.322? YES NO 

E. Indicate the alternate language(s) in which public notice is required: 

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

817-579-4720

jordan.bryan@ethosenergy.com

Brian Birdwell

Shelby Slawson

Spanish



Federal Operating Permit Program 
Site Information Summary 

Form OP-1 (Page 4) 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

IX. Off-Site Permit Request 
(Optional for applicants requesting to hold the FOP and records at an off-site location.) 

A. Office/Facility Name: 

B. Physical Address: 

City: 

State: 

ZIP Code: 

Territory: 

Country: 

Foreign Postal Code: 

C. Physical Location: 

D. Contact Name Prefix: ( Mr. Mrs. Ms. Dr.) 

Contact Full Name: 

E. Telephone No.: 

X. Application Area Information 

A. Area Name: 

B. Physical Address: 

City: 

State: 

ZIP Code: 

C. Physical Location: 

D. Nearest City: 

E. State: 

F. ZIP Code: 

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

Form OP-1 (Page 5) 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

X. Application Area Information (continued)

G. Latitude (nearest second): 

H. Longitude (nearest second): 

I. Are there any emission units that were not in compliance with the applicable 
requirements identified in the application at the time of application submittal? YES NO 

J. Indicate the estimated number of emission units in the application area: 

K. Are there any emission units in the application area subject to the Acid Rain Program? YES NO 

XI. Public Notice 
(Complete this section for SOP Applications and Acid Rain Permit Applications only.) 

A. Name of a public place to view application and draft permit: 

B. Physical Address: 

City: 

ZIP Code: 

C. Contact Person (Someone who will answer questions from the public during the public notice period): 

Contact Name Prefix: ( Mr. Mrs. Ms. Dr.): 

Contact Person Full Name: 

Contact Mailing Address: 

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

32 20' 01"

-97 44' 01"

11

Hood County Library

222 North Travis

Granbury

76048

Jordan Bryan

9201 Wolf Hollow Court

Granbury

Texas
76048

817-579-4720



Federal Operating Permit Program 
Site Information Summary 

Form OP-1 (Page 6) 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

XII. Delinquent Fees and Penalties 

Notice:  This form will not be processed until all delinquent fees and/or penalties owed to the TCEQ or the Office of 
Attorney General on behalf of the TCEQ are paid in accordance with the “Delinquent Fee and Penalty Protocol.” 

Complete Sections XIII and XIV for Acid Rain Permit and CSAPR applications only. Please include a copy of the 
Certificate of Representation submitted to EPA. 

XIII. Designated Representative (DR) Identifying Information 

DR Name Prefix: ( Mr. Mrs. Ms. Dr.) 

DR Full Name: 

DR Title: 

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

Form OP-1 (Page 7) 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

Complete Sections XIII and XIV for Acid Rain Permit and CSAPR applications only. Please include a copy of the 
Certificate of Representation submitted to EPA. 

XIV. Alternate Designated Representative (ADR) Identifying Information 

ADR Name Prefix: ( Mr. Mrs. Ms. Dr.) 

ADR Full Name: 

ADR Title:  

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

John Adams

President

TexGen Power, LLC

11200 Westheimer Road, Suite 1025

Houston

Texas
77042

346-318-0261

jadams@texgenpower.com



 

TCEQ-10059 (APDG 5722v26, revised 03/22) OP-2 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and 
may be revised periodically. (Title V release 03/10) Page _____ of _______  

 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Application for Permit Revision/Renewal 

Form OP-2-Table 1 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 
Date: 02/01/2024 

Permit No.: O2066 

Regulated Entity No.: RN100219195 

Company Name: Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC 

For Submissions to EPA 

Has an electronic copy of this application been submitted (or is being submitted) to EPA?  YES  NO 

I. Application Type 

Indicate the type of application: 

 Renewal 

 Streamlined Revision (Must include provisional terms and conditions as explained in the instructions.) 

 Significant Revision 

 Revision Requesting Prior Approval 

 Administrative Revision 

 Response to Reopening 

II. Qualification Statement 

For SOP Revisions Only  YES  NO 

For GOP Revisions Only  YES  NO 

  



 

TCEQ-10059 (APDG 5722v26, revised 03/22) OP-2 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and 
may be revised periodically. (Title V release 03/10) Page _____ of ______  
 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Application for Permit Revision/Renewal 

Form OP-2-Table 1 (continued) 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 

III. Major Source Pollutants (Complete this section if the permit revision is due to a change at the site or change in regulations.) 

Indicate all pollutants for which the site is a major source based on the site’s potential to emit: 
(Check the appropriate box[es].) 

 VOC  NOX  SO2  PM10  CO  Pb  HAP 

Other: 

IV. Reference Only Requirements (For reference only) 

Has the applicant paid emissions fees for the most recent agency fiscal year (September 1 - August 31)?  YES  NO  N/A 

V. Delinquent Fees and Penalties 

Notice:  This form will not be processed until all delinquent fees and/or penalties owed to the TCEQ or the Office of the Attorney General on behalf 
of the TCEQ are paid in accordance with the Delinquent Fee and penalty protocol. 

 
  



 

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

Form OP-2-Table 2 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 
Date: 02/01/2024 

Permit No.: O2066 

Regulated Entity No.: RN100219195 

Company Name: Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC 

 
Using the table below, provide a description of the revision. 
 
   Unit/Group Process   

Revision No. Revision Code New Unit ID No. Applicable Form 
NSR 

Authorization 
Description of Change and Provisional 
Terms and Conditions 

1 SIG-A NO GRP-TURB OP-UA11 NSR 41166 Remove Subpart GG and Db & add applicability 
for Subpart KKKK. 

2 SIG-A NO GRP-BLR OP-UA6 NSR 41166 Remove Subpart GG and Db & add applicability 
for Subpart KKKK. 
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Federal Operating Permit Program 
Application for Permit Revision/Renewal 

Form OP-2-Table 3 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 
Date: 02/01/2024 

Permit No.: O2066 

Regulated Entity No.: RN100219195 

Company Name: Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC 

I. Significant Revision (Complete this section if you are submitting a significant revision application or a renewal application that includes a 
significant revision.) 

A. Is the site subject to bilingual requirements pursuant to 30 TAC § 122.322?  YES  NO 

B. Indicate the alternate language(s) in which public notice is required: Spanish 

C. Will, there be a change in air pollutant emissions as a result of the significant revision?  YES  NO 

 
  



TCEQ - 10100 (APDG 5876v4, Revised 07/17) OP-ACPS
This form is for use by sources subject to air quality permit requirements
and may be revised periodically. Page _____ of _____ 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality
Form OP-ACPS

Application Compliance Plan and Schedule

Date: Regulated Entity No.: Permit No.:

Company Name: Area Name:

Part 1 of this form must be submitted with all initial FOP applications and renewal applications.

The Responsible Official must use Form OP-CRO1 (Certification by Responsible Official) to certify 
information contained in this form in accordance with 30 TAC § 122.132(d)(8).

Part 1

A. Compliance Plan — Future Activity Committal Statement

The Responsible Official commits, utilizing reasonable effort, to the following:
As the responsible official it is my intent that all emission units shall continue to be in compliance with all 
applicable requirements they are currently in compliance with, and all emission units shall be in compliance 
by the compliance dates with any applicable requirements that become effective during the permit term.

B. Compliance Certification - Statement for Units in Compliance*
(Indicate response by entering an “X” in the appropriate column)

1. With the exception of those emission units listed in the Compliance Schedule section 
of this form (Part 2, below), and based, at minimum, on the compliance method 
specified in the associated applicable requirements, are all emission units addressed 
in this application in compliance with all their respective applicable requirements as 
identified in this application?

YES NO

2. Are there any non-compliance situations addressed in 
Section of this form (Part 2)?

the Compliance Schedule YES NO

3. If the response to Item B.2, above, is “Yes,” indicate the total number of Part 2 
attachments included in this submittal. (For reference only)

* For Site Operating Permits (SOPs), the complete application should be consulted for applicable 
requirements and their corresponding emission units when assessing compliance status.
For General Operating Permits (GOPs), the application documentation, particularly Form OP-REQ1
should be consulted as well as the requirements contained in the appropriate General Permits portion of 
30 TAC Chapter 122.

Compliance should be assessed based, at a minimum, on the required monitoring, testing, record 
keeping, and/or reporting requirements, as appropriate, associated with the applicable requirement in 
question.

02/01/2024

Wolf Hollow I

RN100219195 O2066

Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC
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1/26/24, 1:53 PM CBS: Reports: Certificate of Representation Report

https://camd.epa.gov/CBS/reportBuilder/viewReport 1/4

Help Definitions Contact Us  

The report output is displayed below. Use your browser's print functionality to print the report. A
PDF may be generated by selecting 'Print to PDF' as the printer destination. This report output can
be best printed when the print settings on your computer are set to a landscape orientation. If the
report is downloadable, a Download button will appear and you may click it to download the report
output.

Certificate of Representation Report

Wolf Hollow Generating Station (55139) - TX

State

Texas

County

Hood County

EPA Region

6

Latitude

32.3347

Longitude

-97.7344

NERC Region

Electric Reliability Council of Texas

FRS ID

110012628255

Notes

740 MW, 2x1 Combined Cycle, Mitsubishi 501G Natural Gas Fired Turbine Power Plant

Representatives

Primary Representative Alternate Representative

https://camd.epa.gov/CBS/assets/Help-Industry-6d9f299a0b151f4581ba20e8718a0eb9.pdf#nameddest=reportBuilder
https://camd.epa.gov/CBS/assets/Help-Industry-6d9f299a0b151f4581ba20e8718a0eb9.pdf#nameddest=reportBuilder
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Rex LaMew

Effective Date: 07/09/2019
EthosEnergy Power
Operations (West), LLC
Facility Manager

9201 Wolf Hollow CT
Granbury, TX 76048

(928) 208-7282
rex.lamew@ethosenergy.com

Submitted Electronic
Signature Agreement: Yes

John Adams

Effective Date: 11/15/2019
TexGen Power, LLC
President

11200 Westheimer Rd, Suite
1025
Houston, TX 77042

(346) 318-0261
jadams@texgenpower.com

Submitted Electronic
Signature Agreement: No

Units

Unit AUXBLR

Programs

ARP

Is this unit in Indian Country?

No

Operating Status

Operating

Commence Operation Date

08/30/2002

Commence Commercial Operation Date

08/08/2003

Source Category

Electric Utility

NAICS Code

221112 - Fossil fuel electric power generation

Owner(s)

Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC

Operator

Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC

Unit CTG1

Programs

ARP, CSOSG2

Is this unit in Indian Country?

No

Operating Status

Operating

Commence Operation Date

10/28/2002

Commence Commercial Operation Date

04/27/2003

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

09/09/2003 (C. Hillock) This unit is exempt from
ARP because it does not serve an electrical
generator. This auxiliary boiler is used to start
the steam turbine when the plant is shut down.
Once the turbine is on-line, the AUX boiler is
shut-down and not started again until all units at
the plant cease to operate.

Notes

9/22/2004 (C. Hillock) CCO date is on or before
4/27/2003 based on certification tests.

Unit CTG2

Programs

ARP, CSOSG2

Is this unit in Indian Country?

No

Operating Status

Operating

Commence Operation Date

12/14/2002

Commence Commercial Operation Date

04/29/2003

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
4/29/2003 based on Certification tests.

Unit CTG3

Programs

Is this unit in Indian Country?

No

Operating Status

Cancelled

Owner(s)

Operator

Unit CTG4

Programs
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Is this unit in Indian Country?

No

Operating Status

Cancelled

Owner(s)

Operator

Generators

Generator CTG1

Acid Rain Program Nameplate Capacity (MWe)

264.8

Other Programs Nameplate Capacity (MWe)

264.8

Units Linked to Generator

CTG1

Generator CTG2

Acid Rain Program Nameplate Capacity (MWe)

264.8

Other Programs Nameplate Capacity (MWe)

264.8

Units Linked to Generator

CTG2

Generator ST

Acid Rain Program Nameplate Capacity (MWe)

280

Other Programs Nameplate Capacity (MWe)

280

Units Linked to Generator

CTG1,CTG2



Form OP-CROI
Ce rtificetion by Responsible Official
Fe de ral Ope rating Permit Program

All initial permit applrcatixl. revbi:n. renerval and rcopenng subrnnals requiring certifrcatbn must be addressed using
this form. UFatcs to site operating permit (SOP) and temporarl operating permit (TOP) applicati:ns. other than public
notbc verifrcation materials. must b€ certifEd prpr to authonatir of public notice or start of public annourcemsnt.
Updates to general operatng permit (GOP) applicatims must be certified prior to recevmg an authoriation to operate
undcr a GOP.

I. Identifoinglnformation

RN: 100219195 ('N: 600130132 Account No.: HQ{112-O

Pe rmlt No.: 02066 Propct No.: TBA

.A.rca Namc: Wolf Hollorry I Companl Name: Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC

II. Certifcetion Type (Please tmrk the appropriate box)

n Dub Aufiorized Rc pre scntativc

IlI. Submittal TyW (Please rmrk the appropiate box) (Onlyone resgtnw can be accepted per./brn)

E SOPIOP lrutral Permit Appbatitrn

E COP Initiat Permit ApplicatirN

fl other:

E Udare to Permt Applicati:n

fr Permit Revbioq Renewal or Reopening

IV. CetificationofTruth

This certification does not extend to information which is designated bythe TCEQ as information for rcfer€nce
only.

(Certifier Nanc printed or typed) (RO or DAR)

and thal based on information and bclief formed after reasonable inquiry'. the statcments and informatbn dated during

the time perind or or tlre specific date(s) belo$'. are true, accurate, and cornpbte:

Note: Enter Either a Tinc Peiod OR Spa.fic Dateb).foreadt cerhfication. This section mrst be completed. The

certification is not valid withat doatm)nlalion dale(s).

End DatcSlarl Dote

02to1t2024Spccific Dates
Date 6Date I l)ote 5Date 3l)ate 2Date I

to

I. Rex LaMew

Time Period: From

ccrtifi'that I am tle RO

02JO1t2024
S8nature DasJSignature

Title Facility Manager

If'P -t fixB(APDG 54616' Relt!.d 0g16) oP{Ro I
'iir 

"i..-it fi 
". 

* tr r*lul l,E lublccl lo.lr quditv penntr trqulrcment! rnd

nrrt h Itl.!.d Fdodcdtl. ('nd. r' Relec 08nE)
Prge _of-

( Rosponsiblc OffrcLrl

Z.A /^t(n-



Form OP-CROI
Ce rtification by De signated Reprtsetrtrtive

Acid Rain. Cross-State Air Pollution Rule (CSAPR)

All initial permit applbatron- permit revisrorL and rerru al suhnifials requirng ccrtfrcatbn must be accompanrd b1 this
form. Udates to acil rain or CSAPR (otlrer than public notice verification materiab) must be cerufied pror lo
authorizatbn of public notbe for the draft pcrmit.

PRINT FORM RESET FORM

I(] !Q - I 0009 ( A PIrc 543616, Rcltsd 0glt) OP{RO l
Th I s form I ! foru* bl- f*tlhl.r sobld to.lr qu tfity pcnnll rtqEllfm6(. .nd
msi ht rt{led Frlodcalb. (llde v R.1..!e0yf6)

I. Identifuinglnforrnation

RN: 100219195 CN: 600130132 Account No: HO-0112-O

Permlt No.: 02066 Pro1ect No.: TBA

Area Narne: Wolf Hollow I Companl Namc: Wolf Hollow lPower, LLC

( Dcslgnated Rcprc scntati\ c n Ahcmated Dcsigrated Rcprcsentativc

III. Requircment and Submiftal TS'p (l'lease rmrk lhe aryropriate box.for each colunn)

Acid Ram Permrt CSAPR

Submittal Tlpe: E tnltiat pemt npplrcation E Upaa.te to Permrt Application

NPermit Revbi:n or Renesal D Other:

IV. Certification of Truth

I. thc DR

(Narc pnnrcd or t.vped) (DR or ADR)

am authorized to make this submbsion on behaf of the orvners ard ope ralors of the source or tmits for u hrh the

submissiN is madc. I certi$' rmder pena\' of lau. that I have persona\' e:,camined, and am familhr witll the statements

and grformatim submired in this docurnenl and all its asachments. Based ur my.. irquirl of those indivdtrats rvith
primry respcnrsibilfi' for ohaining the informatiyr. I certi! that dre statements are to th€ best of ml lnovledge and

bclbf tnrc. accuratc- and complctc. I am a\arc t}al therc are significant pcnaIies for submiEing false statements and

mformatron or omtung required statements and informatbn. nctding the pocsibiliN of fine or imprisonment. The

abovc ccnificatixr is for tlrc statenEnts and informatbn dated during the time peri:d or on thc spccific datc(s) bclou :

lNorc: tnte r ETTHERa Tine Pcriod ORSpecific Date(9.for each ccrljfication. This section ,mtst be completul. The

lcertfiication is not valtd w ha doaoennnon date(s l.

Time Period: From to
.\tart l)ote hnd l)ote

Specifrc Dates
0vo1t20?4

Date l Date 2 I)ote 3 Date I Dotc 5 Date 6

tt\-l-t SEnature Date
0210't t2024

SrgnatU re:

Trtlc
Facility Manager

Pege _of_

II. Certifcetion Type (Please nnrkthe appropriate box)

Requirement:

Rex LaMew



   
 

Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC                    Title V SOP Renewal Application 
Wolf Hollow I  February 2024  

ATTACHMENT 3 
UNIT ATTRIBUTE FORMS 

 
TITLE V SOP RENEWAL APPLICATION 

 
WOLF HOLLOW I POWER, LLC 

 
WOLF HOLLOW I  

 
 
 

The following Unit Attribute Forms are included in this section:   
 
• OP-UA2 – Stationary Reciprocating Internal Combustion Engine Attributes 
• OP-UA6 – Boiler/Steam Generator/Steam Generating Unit Attributes 
• OP-UA11 – Stationary Turbine Attributes 
• OP-UA15 – Emission Point/Stationary Vent/Process Vent Attributes 



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



TCEQ - 10046 (APDG 5168v47, Revised 11/22) OP-UA15 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit 
requirements and may be revised periodically. (Title V Release ) Page _____ of ______  

Emission Point/Stationary Vent/Distillation Operation Vent/Process Vent Attributes 
Form OP-UA15 (Page 1) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Table 1a:  Title 30 Texas Administrative Code Chapter 111 (30 TAC Chapter 111) 

Subchapter A:  Visible Emissions 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

Date Permit No. Regulated Entity No. 

Emission Point 
ID No.

SOP/GOP 
Index No.

Alternate Opacity 
Limitation AOL ID No. Vent Source

Opacity 
Monitoring System Construction Date Effluent Flow Rate

O2066 RN100219195

GRP-VNT R111 NO OTHER NONE 72+

02/01/2024



Wolf Hollow I Power, LLC                    Title V SOP Renewal Application 
Wolf Hollow I  February 2024  
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 4 
APPLICABILITY DETERMINATIONS 

 
 TITLE V SOP RENEWAL APPLICATION 

 
WOLF HOLLOW I POWER, LLC 

 
WOLF HOLLOW I 

 
 
 

The following Applicability Forms are included in this section:   
 

• OP-REQ1 – Application Area-Wide Applicability Determinations and General    
Information 

• OP-REQ2 – Negative Applicable Requirement Determinations 
• Major NSR Summary Table 
• OP-PBRSUP – Permits By Rule Supplemental Table 
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



TCEQ-10017 (APD-ID156v2.0, Revised 07/22) Form OP-REQ2 - Negative Applicable/Superseded Requirement Determinations 
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and  
may be revised periodically (Title V Release 10/07) Page ______ of ______

Form OP-REQ2 
Negative Applicable/Superseded Requirement Determinations 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

Date Permit No. Regulated Entity No. 

02/01/2024 O2066 RN100219195

Unit AI Revision No. 
Unit/Group/Process 

ID No. 
Unit/Group/Process 

Applicable Form 
Potentially Applicable 

Regulatory Name 

Negative 
Applicability/Superseded 

Requirement Citation 
Negative Applicability/Superseded 

Requirement Reason 

A 1 GRP-TURB OP-REQ2 Subpart TTTT 40 CFR 60 Subpart TTTT, 
Table 2 – CO2 Emission 
Standards for Affected 
Stationary Turbines  

Subpart TTTT is applicable for new and 
reconstructed stationary turbines, but it 
does not apply to modified turbines. 



Monitoring and Testing 
Requirements

Reporting Requirements

lbs/hour TPY (4) Spec. Cond./Appl. Info. Spec. Cond./Appl. Info.

NOx 91.90 --

CO 143.40 --

VOC 12.30 --

PM10/PM2.5 30.10 --

SO2 41.80 --

H2SO4 5.10 --

NH3 37.8 --

NOx 91.90 --

CO 143.40 --

VOC 12.30 --

PM10/PM2.5 30.10 --

SO2 41.80 --

H2SO4 5.10 --

NH3 37.8 --

NOx 386.90 --
CO 3029.20 --
VOC 333.40 --
PM10/PM2.5 21.30 --
SO2 18.20 --
H2SO4 2.20 --
NH3 20.50 --

NOx 386.90 --
CO 3029.20 --
VOC 333.40 --
PM10/PM2.5 21.30 --
SO2 18.20 --
H2SO4 2.20 --
NH3 20.50 --

 Major NSR Summary Table

E-ST2 MHI501G (~ 254 MW) 
+ ~ 243.3 MMBtu/hr 
DB

E-ST1 MHI501G (~ 254 MW) 
+ ~ 243.3 MMBtu/hr 
DB 

Hourly Emission Rates - Reduced Load and MSS Operations

4,7,9,10,11,12,14,15,16,19, 
21,25,27

4,7,9,10,11,12,14,15,16,19, 
21,22,23,24,25,27 9,10,11,12,25,26,27

4,7,9,10,11,12,14,15,16,25, 
27

4,7,9,10,11,12,14,15,16,23, 
24,25,27 9,10,11,12,25,26,27

Permits Numbers: 41166 and PSDTX939 Issuance Date: 10/31/2019

4,7,9,10,11,12,14,15,16,25, 
27

4,7,9,10,11,12,14,15,16,23, 
24,25,27 9,10,11,12,25,26,27

Emission RateEmission Point No. (1) 0 Air Contaminant Name (3) Recordkeeping 
Requirements

Spec. Cond./Appl. Info.

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

NOx -- 708.70

CO -- 1128.60

VOC -- 103.00

PM10/PM2.5 -- 230.90

SO2 -- 161.60

H2SO4 -- 19.80

NH3 -- 291.50

NOx 8.50 3.70

CO 10.50 4.60

VOC 0.77 0.34

PM10/PM2.5 1.40 0.60

SO2 2.20 0.49

E-TANK7 Diesel Storage Tank 300 
Gallon

VOC 0.01 <0.01

PM 5.68 24.87

PM10/PM2.5 0.41 1.82

VOC 0.11 0.50

NH3 0.33 1.41

MSSFUG Non ILEs 
Maintenance 

VOC 276.33 0.27
19,21 25,26

NOx <0.01 <0.01

CO <0.01 <0.01

VOC 0.21 0.01

PM10 0.36 0.01

PM2.5 0.36 0.01

Major NSR Summary Table

E-AUXBLR Auxiliary Boiler 
142 MMBtu/hr

10, 11,13,15,16,25 10, 11,13,15,16,23,24,25 10, 11,25,26,27

E-ST1 & E-ST2 MHI501G (~ 254 MW) 
+ ~ 243.3 MMBtu/hr 
DB 

4,7,9,10,11,12,14,15,16,19, 
21,25,27

4,7,9,10,11,12,14,15,16,19, 
21,22,23,24,25,27 9,10,11,12,25,26,27

Permits Numbers: 41166 and PSDTX939 Issuance Date: 10/31/2019

Emission Point No. (1) Source Name (2) Air Contaminant Name (3) Emission Rate Recordkeeping 
Requirements

Spec. Cond./Appl. Info.

Annual Emission Rates - Normal, Reduced Load, and  MSS Operations

8,17 8,17,23,24 25
C-TOWER Cooling Tower

19,21,23,24

ILEs MaintenanceILEMSS

14,19,21 14,19,21,22,23,24 25,26

E-PIPFUG Piping Fugitives



(1) Emission point identification - either specific equipment designation or emission point number from plot plan. 
(2) Specific point source name. For fugitive sources, use area name or fugitive source name.
(3) Exempt Solvent - Those carbon compounds or mixtures of carbon compound used as solvents which have been excluded from the definition of organic compound.
VOC - volatile organic compound as defined in Title 30 Texas Administrative Code §101.1
NOx - total oxides of nitrogen
PM -  total particulate matter, suspended in the atmosphere, including PM10 and PM2.5, as represented

PM2.5 - particulate matter equal to or less than 10 microns in diameter, including PM2.5, as represented

CO - carbon monoxide
MSS - maintenance, start-up, and shutdown emissions
HAP - hazardous air pollutant as listed in §112(b) of the Federal Clean Air Act or Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 63, Subpart C
(4) Compliance with annual emission limits (tons per year) is based on a 12-month rolling period.
(5) Emissions rate is an estimate and is enforceable through compliance with the applicable special condition(s) and permit application representations.
(6) For NOx and CO emissions that are measured using a CEMS, the Reduced Load/MSS lb/hr limits apply during each clock hour that includes one or more minutes of reduced load operation or MSS activities. During all other 
clock hours, the normal lb/hr limits apply.
(7) for NH3 emissions that are measured using a CEMS, the Normal Load limits apply during each clock hour that includes one of more minutes of normal load operation. During all other clock hours, the Reduced Load/MSS lb/hr 

limits apply.



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

Turbine Unit 2 (E-ST2) 161186 106.261 & 106.262 6/11/2020 

Turbine Unit 1 (E-ST1) 161185 106.261 & 106.262 6/11/2020 

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

Turbine Unit 2 (E-ST2) 161186 6/11/2020 Monitor and maintain records demonstrating emissions are below permit limits. 

Turbine Unit 1 (E-ST1) 161185 6/11/2020 Monitor and maintain records demonstrating emissions are below permit limits. 

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
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